
1 
 

 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 
210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B • Gunnison, Colorado 81230 

Telephone (970) 641-6065 • www.ugrwcd.org 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, March 28, 2022 

5:30 PM 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
To be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin. 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
5:30 p.m. 1. Call to Order 

5:31 p.m. 2. Agenda Approval 
 
5:32 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda Items: Any of the following items may be removed for 

discussion from the consent agenda at the request of any Board member or 
citizen. 

• Approval of February 28, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
• Monthly Budget Summary 
• Consideration of Expenses 

 
5:35    p.m.    4.         Legal and Legislative Matters 

• EXECUTIVE SESSION  
The Board will discuss a consultant maximum indirect cost recovery rate. The 
Board is authorized to meet in executive session for the purpose of determining 
positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations and instructing 
negotiators. § 26-402-4(4)(d)(I) Colorado Revised Statutes. 

• Legislative Activity Report 
• Memorandum Regarding Lake Powell and Glen Canyon Dam 

 
5:55 p.m. 5. Meet Steve Pope, General Manager of UVWUA 
 
6:05 p.m. 6. “Dust on Snow” Report by Jeff Derry, Center for Snow and Avalanche Studies 
 
6:25  p.m. 7. BREAK 
 

http://www.ugrwcd.org/


2 
 

 
 
6:50  p.m. 8. Basin Water Supply Update 
 
6:55  p.m. 9. General Manager, Committee and Staff Updates 

• Treasurer’s Update 
• General Manager’s Update 
• Executive Committee Meeting Update 
• Taylor Local User’s Group Meeting Update and Operations Report 

o March 7 TLUG Meeting Summary and Taylor Report 
• Watershed Management Planning Committee Update 

o March 14 WMP Meeting Summary 
• Grant Committee Update 

o Action on Grant Committee Recommendations for 2022 District 
Grant Program Funding Awards 

• Wet Meadows Program Update 
o Action on GOCO Grant Resolution 

• Education and Outreach Update 
• Scientific Endeavors Update 
• Gunnison Basin Roundtable Update  
• Gunnison River Festival Update 

 
8:00 p.m. 10. Miscellaneous Matters 

• Gunnison Energy Production - Solar Panels 
• Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet 
• Newspapers and Other Water Articles 

 
8:02   p.m. 11. Citizens Comments 
 
8:05  p.m. 12. Future Meetings 
 
8:15 p.m. 13. Summary of Meeting Action Items 
  
8:20 p.m. 14. Adjournment 
   
 

 
 
 

Note: This agenda is subject to change, including the addition of items or the deletion of items at any time. All times are approximate. 
Regular meetings, public hearings, and special meetings are recorded, and action can be taken on any item. The board may address individual 
agenda items at any time or in any order to accommodate the needs of the board and the audience. Persons with special needs due to a 
disability are requested to call the District at (970)641-6065 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 



AGENDA ITEM 3
Consent Agenda Items



Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Monday, February 28, 2022 

 

The Board of Directors of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (UGRWCD) 

conducted a regular meeting on Monday, February 28, 2022, at 5:30 p.m. in the District office, 

210 West Spencer Avenue, Suite B, Gunnison, CO, 81230 and via Zoom video/teleconferencing. 

 

Board members present: Sara Bergstrom, Rosemary Carroll, Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, 

Stacy McPhail, John Perusek, Don Sabrowski and Andy Spann.   

 

Board members absent:  Julie Nania, Bill Nesbitt and Michelle Pierce 

 

Others present: 

Cheryl Cwelich, UGRWCD Watershed Programs Coordinator 

Sonja Chavez, UGRWCD General Manager 

Janna Hansen, Town of Crested Butte Director of Parks 

John McClow, UGRWCD Legal Counsel 

Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 

Jill Steele, UGRWCD Accountant 

Sue Uerling, UGRWCD Administrative Assistant/Communications Support Specialist 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

Board Vice President Michelle Pierce called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  

 

2.       AGENDA APPROVAL 

 

Director Rebie Hazard moved and Director John Perusek seconded approval of the agenda 

as circulated. The motion carried. 

 

3. CHANGES TO FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail referred to the memo provided by Accountant Jill Steele regarding 

changes to the financial reports due to the streamlining of the District’s QuickBooks records.  

Stacy asked if any Directors had questions for Jill and none were raised.. 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS   

 



Director Joellen Fonken noted that the minutes had a reference to the Gunnison River “Festival” 

spreadsheet and that this should have just read “Gunnison River Spreadsheet.” 

 

Director Sara Bergstrom moved and Director Joellen Fonken seconded approval of the 

consent agenda, with the correction to the minutes noted. The motion carried. 

 

5. LEGAL MATTERS 

 

Legal Counsel John McClow referred to the summary of legislative bills included in the Board 

packet.  John reported that no new bills of interest to the District have been introduced since the 

packet was distributed.  He asked if there were any questions about the bills.  Director McPhail 

noted that bill SB22-029 on water speculation was very complicated and John noted that the 

District is opposed to this bill as there is alreadysubstantial anti-speculation law in statute and 

case law.  General Manager Sonja Chavez said that if SB22-029 would pass, it would open a 

whole new can of worms and could actually be beneficial to speculators.   

 

Counselor McClow also referred to the Court of Appeals decision included in the packet about a 

case involving “navigable water” that could go to the state Supreme Court for review.  Director 

Perusek asked how this case might affect the District. John McClow said that in the case, the 

plaintiff is making the argument that “Because the river was navigable at statehood, then the 

riverbed is public land owned by the state of Colorado” and therefore, he was not trespassing 

when he was wading on the riverbed. John McClow noted that the criterion for navigability at 

statehood is whether this reach of the river was used for commerce.  Director Joellen Fonken 

asked if an angler who does not have an angling business is considered “commerce” of is he just 

an angler? John McClow answered that he would be “just an angler.” John said that the Colorado 

Water Congress is supporting the landowner because the fisherman is asserting the public trust 

doctrine should exist in Colorado. The District opposes the public trust doctrine. 

 

6.  DINNER BREAK 

 

7. GOTHIC RAW WATER PROJECT PRESENTATION. 

 

    Town of Crested Butte Director of Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails Janna Hansen gave 

a presentation about Crested Butte’s “Gothic Raw Water Project” which was partially funded by 

the District. Janna reviewed the components of the project and said that the benefits are: (1) 

Water Savings; (2) Cost Savings; (3) System Reliability; and (4) Meeting Non-consumptive 

Goals.  She said the total cost6 for Phase I and II of the project were $216,539.63 and that the 

District provided grant funding in the amount of $13,150 for Phase I and $50,000 for Phase II.  

Director Rosemary Carroll asked if this will be the first summer raw water will be used to 

irrigate Gothic Park.  Janna said that yes, ditch water will be run through the headgate on Coal 



Creek to prime the system.  Janna noted that the “irrigation smart clock system” is designed to 

save water through its monitoring capabilities. Janna showed a photo of the ballfield and 

Director Joellen Fonken noted that the fence around the ballfield would look good with banners 

highlighting the logos of the partners who gave financial support for the Gothic Raw Water 

Project.  Janna said she would look into having these banners made for the outfield fence.  Janna 

concluded that the Town of Crested Butte has submitted a grant for improvements to the Slate 

River Bridge and that she appreciates working collaboratively with the Basin communities on 

such projects.  

 

8.  BASIN WATER SUPPLY REPORT 

 

Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards referred to the report included in the packet and said 

that not much has changed in spite of Crested Butte receiving 22 inches of snow last week.  Bev 

said that while Lake City’s snowpack has improved with this last storm, they are still at 81 

percent of normal and this is dragging down the average.  As of the meeting time, Bev said the 

Basin’s total snowpack was at 106 percent of normal for this date. 

 

9.  TREASURER’S REPORT 

 

 In his absence, Treasurer Bill Nesbitt sent an email for the Treasurer’s report. General Manager 

Sonja Chavez asked if there were any questions about it and none were raised. 

 

10 A. DISCUSSION:  Coordinated Emergency Response Planning 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez noted that the recent wildfires have been very hot, fast-burning 

fires and that Colorado is suffering from the worst drought in 1200 years.  In her memo in the 

Board packet, Sonja outlined steps the District is taking related to pre-wildfire mitigation 

planning efforts within the basin. With respect to ponds in the basin that can be used for fire 

suppression, she noted that only a third of them have water rights associated with them.  She said 

the County Commissioners could require that these ponds not be drained at the end of the season, 

particularly since there is no definite end to wildfire season any longer. 

 

Sonja noted that Jamie Gomez, executive director of the West Region Wildfire Council, will be 

making a presentation to Gunnison County on March 9 about efforts in this area.  Sonja offered 

to share the details of this presentation with the Board.  Sonja said that historically, the District 

has not had much interaction with emergency response teams and she would like to see the 

District become more involved in emergency planning for wildfires. She would like to research 

what other watersheds have done.  Sonja noted that the Colorado Department of Public Health 

and Environment (CDPHE) have grant funding available that might help the District move 

forward with next steps.  Director Stacy McPhail noted that insurance companies are refusing to 



cover some private homeowners due to wildfire risk and that those living in rural areas are 

paying much higher premiums for coverage.  Stacy thinks the District should raise awareness to 

this fact and wondered how the District can support homeowners in the basin.  Director Rebie 

Hazard reported that Saguache County does not have any emergency response plans in place 

with respect to wildfires.  Sonja offered that with the Board’s blessing, she will move forward 

with contacting emergency response personnel in the Basin and offer to be a resource for 

municipalities and counties to help develop wildfire mitigation plans.   

 

10 B. DISCUSSION:  Demand Management Market Concept 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to a memo included in the packet from the Colorado 

River District General Manager, Andy Mueller, regarding the Demand Management Conceptual 

Market Structure.  Sonja noted that the comments in red were the responses they received during 

their public comment period.  Sonja said the report was just informational at this time and she 

encouraged Board members to share this with their constituents, such as stockgrowers and 

municipalities. Sonja feels it is important that we stay informed and share it with people who 

may be affected during an emergency response.  Director Stacy McPhail gave kudos to the River 

District for starting this conversation now so that we can be prepared should action be needed 

through an emergency response.     

 

11. GENERAL MANAGER AND STAFF REPORTS 

 

A. Homestake Pitch Uranium  

General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that at the last Board meeting, she was charged with 

writing a letter to the Water Quality Control Commission to express the Board’s concerns 

about removing the drinking water standard from Homestake Mine’s mitigation 

requirements.  As it turns out, Homestake’s proposal did not include a request to remove 

drinking water standards from Marshall Creek and instead included a request to have their 

temporary modification extended, which is better than having no drinking water standard at 

all. Therefore, staff decided to hold off on submitting a letter to the Saguache County 

Commissioners. 

 

Sonja was approached by the CDPHE about considering serving on the water quality control 

board for the Western slope.  Sonja did submit her letter of interest and had a follow-up 

interview but has not yet received word about an appointment.  Director Stacy McPhail said 

that on behalf of the Executive Committee, “of course you have our support, Sonja, and it 

will be good to have more engagement at that level.”   

 

B.  Gunnison Headwaters Mitigation Bank 



General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to her Memorandum in the packet and noted that it 

was clear that the Army Corps of Engineers took the District’s concerns seriously. The 

District will continue to monitor the situation.    

 

C.  Community Banks Lake City CD 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez referred to her Memorandum in the packet and said she 

would follow up with Treasurer Nesbitt when he returns to Gunnison. 

 

D.  District Phone System Upgrade 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that March 8th is scheduled for the rollover to the 

new Lightspeed phone system.  She did note that there will be an increase in our expenses for 

the telephones of approximately $2200.  There was discussion about whether the District 

should keep a land line in case of emergencies.  Sonja explained that if there is a power 

outage, the Lightspeed system will roll over to her cell phone.  Staff Bev Richards noted that 

the last time service went out, all phones were down, even the landline and cell phones.  

Director Joellen Fonken noted that Emergency Services have satellite phones for such 

instances.  

 

E.  Cheatgrass 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez reported that Gunnison County has taken the lead in trying to 

acquire a full-time coordinator to address the cheatgrass problem in the county.  Sonja noted 

that there are grant funds available through the WaterSMART program to help with the 

situation.  She also recommended that the Board consider adding a line item for $5,000 to the 

District’s budget for 2023 and the following two years to help support the salary of a full-

time cheatgrass coordinator.  Sonja said preliminary discussions were considering a salary of 

approximately $75,000 per year for this position.  After the first three years, the County 

could then decide if they want to continue to seek funding for the position.  

 

Director Joellen Fonken asked if she could “wear the Board hat” on behalf of the District and 

gather a group of volunteers to help pull cheatgrass on the 13th of March for a Gunnison 

Trails work day.  The Board consensus was in support of Joellen’s involvement and also 

moving forward with supporting the County in hiring a full-time cheatgrass coordinator. 

 

E.  Staff Reports 

 

(1.)   Wet Meadows Program 



Watershed Program Coordinator Cheryl Cwelich referred to her update included in 

the packet and said she is excited for the season as the schedule is now all planned 

out. Cheryl noted that she and Sonja have been in contact with the Colorado Natural 

Heritage Program and Colorado State University to discuss negotiating their indirect 

cost rate for vegetation monitoring. Staff feels their rate of 52 percent is too high. 

Cheryl will have more to report at the next Board meeting.   

 

(2.)   Grant Program 

Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards reported that the District received 15 

applications for grant funding for a total of $346,516.  The Grant Committee will 

meet on March 2nd to review the applications. 

 

Director Andy Spann disclosed that Spann Ranches has applied for a grant under the 

program and that he will recuse himself from this application review.  He also said 

that having gone through the process, he has some suggestions for the next grant 

application process.  

 

Bev also reported that Mountain Roots is requesting a second extension to complete 

their grant requirements.   

Director Andy Spann moved and Director Rosemary Carroll seconded a motion 

to approve a second extension for Mountain Roots to complete their grant 

requirements. 

 

(3.)   Education and Outreach 

Communications Support Specialist Sue Uerling referred to her update included in 

the packet and said any Board members interested in handing out “Drop” books to 

Gunnison Elementary School first graders on March 21 at 2:50 p.m., to please let her 

know.  She also asked if there were any Board members interested in being on a two-

person team to represent the District in the Rotary Club Fishing Tournament on May 

7 and 8, to please let her know. 

 

F.  Miscellaneous Reports 

 

(1.)   Gunnison River Festival (GRF) Update  

Director Joellen Fonken said festival plans were coming along and that the schedule 

was similar to pre-Covid festivals with the addition of more interest in activities at 

Lake San Cristobal.  She reported that the GRF Board is reconsidering the prize 

monies involved.  Joellen said she would have more specific details on the schedule 

following their March 17th Board meeting. 

 

(2.)   Scientific Endeavors Update 



Director Rosemary Carroll presented a Power Point from an ongoing research study 

by her colleague Nicola Falco.  The study is being conducted in the upper portion of 

the East River and is looking at the link between snow drought and its effects on 

water quality.  

 

(3.)   Colorado Water Congress Review 

Director Stacy McPhail said she really enjoyed being at the Colorado Water Congress 

Conference in person and that it was valuable to sit across the table from people who 

disagree with you.  She said it was a good lesson about the crucial issues revolving 

around water.  She said she especially enjoyed the fireside chat between the attorney 

generals from Colorado and Wyoming.  She also commended Legal Counsel John 

McClow for his role in serving on the panel discussing the 100 year anniversary of 

the Colorado River Compact.  She encouraged Board members to attend future 

conferences if they are able.   

 

(4.)   Standard Monthly Reports – Solar Panels, Gunnison River Spreadsheet, News 

Articles 

There was some discussion about a few of the news articles included in the packet, 

including questions about what the county and state are considering in terms of 

“reservoir storage” to meet emergency needs.  

 

Taylor Local Users Group 

Director Don Sabrowski asked whether the group should consider adjusting releases 

to meet the year-end maximum fill target for Taylor Reservoir, as has been suggested 

by Ernie Cockrell. Legal Counsel John McClow said that negotiations went on for 

years in developing the Stipulation which establishes the minimum target and that 

target controls. Director Sabrowski said that he worries that if TLUG tries to base 

releases to maintain the maximum year-end level, then they will be choking users 

downstream.  Director Andy Spann said he felt the TLUG representatives did a good 

job of considering everyone’s preferences for releases this last season during a very 

dry year.  He said this is especially challenging because the forecasts are not always 

correct.  He hopes everyone will be as conservative as possible with their requests 

this year. There were discussions about how ASO and additional gauges might help 

with a more accurate forecast.  There were also discussions about how the refill of 

Spring Creek Reservoir could affect the availability of water this summer.  Dan 

Brauch of Colorado Parks and Wildlife has said that he wants to refill the reservoir 

over the winter.  There were also questions about whether or not the District could 

work in cooperation with CPW in supplementing releases.  John McClow said that 

the refill will occur in priority and that we can again try negotiating with the CPW. In 

the past, they have not been willing to talk about it.    



 

12. DIRECTOR UPDATES 

 

Director Stacy McPhail:   Stacy said in her district, there is a lot of concern about grazing on 

public lands and how the environmental group that filed the lawsuit might affect such grazing.  

She just hopes the court’s decision is good for the sage grouse, but based on safe, sound science.  

She feels these public grazing issues are going to be raised all over the western states. 

  

Director Rebie Hazard:   Rebie said at her ranch, it has been warmer at night than in the town 

of Saguache and this this has rarely been the case in the past.  She is also concerned about the 

lack of snow in her area, but was happy to see that the mountain peaks looked good today on her 

drive in.  She also said she has had some questions from constituents about the additional 

personnel the District has hired.  There was discussion that we need to be sure our public 

outreach is showing that we are taking on many more projects and responsibilities than in the 

past, and thus, there is a need for additional personnel to meet all of our needs. 

 

Director Rosemary Carroll: Rosemary said with the data she is collecting for her work 

projects; she is concerned to see a significant drop in the amount of water in the snow.  She has 

also noted that there have been fewer, but bigger storms during this season with a lot of water 

loss due to vapor transport.  She said the most recent snows have all been “sugar” with very little 

water content. 

 

Director Andy Spann:   Andy said that with his grandfather, Lee, and his father, Ken, serving 

on the District Board for many years, he feels there has been an increase of ag producers paying 

attention to what the District is doing with a lot more questions about Demand Management.  

They are all hoping that Blue Mesa fills this spring.  

 

Director John Perusek:  John said that as a member of the City Planning and Zoning 

Commission, there is concern about how to get water to the upper reaches of the new Gunnison 

Rising project.  General Manager Sonja Chavez noted that this is one of the issues that was 

discussed on a recent meeting with the City, herself and Applegate Engineering. She said 

Applegate is looking into possible improvements/replacement of city water pipe lines and 

improvements to the city ditches and how to appropriate all of the needs of the users together 

into the best solution.  

 

Director Stacy McPhail:  Stacy noted that she thought it was a very good exercise for her and 

Sonja to help the Town of CB develop their core values for their Community Compass project.   

 

13. CITIZEN UPDATES 

 



Guest presenter Janna Hansen announced Mt. Emmons Mining Company is holding an Open 

House at Crested Butte Town Hall on Wednesday, March 2 from 2 to 4 p.m. primarily regarding 

the exchange of land around Long Lake through the CB Land Trust and the US Forest Service. 

She said the public is invited to provide input about conservation easements. 

 

14. FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

A listing of upcoming meetings was included in the Board packet. 

 

During this segment of the meeting, Director Rebie Hazard asked if any of the other Directors 

had been approached about mining for rare metals on their property.  Discussion followed about 

the need for better infrastructure and practices for recycling lithium batteries and the blades used 

by wind turbines. 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez asked if the Board would be in favor of the District coordinating 

with the area newspapers about providing a monthly or quarterly Q&A segment on issues 

affecting District water users, such as Demand Management or the public’s perception on new 

District hirings.  The overall consensus was in favor of this with Director Joellen Fonken noting 

that she felt this should be included at no additional cost to the District since we already pay for 

advertising. 

 

15. SUMMARY OF ACTION ITEMS 

 

General Manager Sonja Chavez will coordinate with Gunnison County to get more 

information to bring back to the District on their plans to move forward with hiring a full-

time Cheatgrass Coordinator. 

 

Sonja will draft a letter to Saguache County Commissioners regarding Homestake Mine’s 

recent proposal to the Water Quality Commission with respect to their removal of the 

drinking water quality standard. 

 

Legal Counsel John McClow will reach out again to Dan Brauch/Colorado Parks and 

Wildlife about the possibility of collaborating on supplemental water from Spring Creek 

Reservoir. 

 

Sonja will develop a plan of how best to work with the area newspapers to have a regular 

monthly or quarterly article, perhaps in a Q&A format, about issues affecting District 

water users. 

 



Director Joellen Fonken will send Board members details about a cheatgrass pull workday 

later in March. 

 

Water Resource Specialist Beverly Richards will send the Board details about the March 

9th Forest Health team meeting.  

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Vice President Stacy McPhail adjourned the February 28, 2022 board meeting at 8:05 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Stacy McPhail, Vice President 

 

 

 

 































































AGENDA ITEM 4
Legal and Legislative Matters



 

March 17, 2022 

This report summarizes bills of interest to the District introduced in the General Assembly in 
this session and reviewed by the Legislative Committee. The links connect to the full text of the 
bills as introduced. Updates from the February 17 Report are printed in red. When amendments 
to the bill as introduced are substantial, a link to the amendment is provided. 

HOUSE BILLS 

HB22-1012  CONCERNING HEALTHY FORESTS, AND, IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH,  CREATING THE WILDFIRE MITIGATION AND RECOVERY GRANT 
PROGRAM. 

House sponsors:  Cutter and Valdez D., Lynch, Snyder  Senate sponsors:  Ginal and Lee, Story 

Wildfire Matters Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill creates the wildfire mitigation 
and recovery grant program (grant program) in the Colorado state forest service (forest service) 
to provide grants to help counties with forested areas prevent and recover from wildfire 
incidents and ensure that such efforts are undertaken in a manner that reduces the amount of 
carbon that enters the atmosphere. In expending grant money, a county, to the extent 
practicable, shall ensure that biomass that is removed from forests is recycled or disposed of in a 
manner that reduces the amount of carbon that enters the atmosphere.  

 The forest service shall administer the grant program and, subject to available 
appropriations, award grants out of money annually appropriated to the forest service for the 
grant program. The forest service shall review grant applications in consultation with the 
division of fire prevention and control in the department of public safety and with the Colorado 
forest health council in the department of natural resources.  

 The grant program is repealed, effective September 1, 2028. Before the repeal, the grant 
program is scheduled for a sunset review by the department of regulatory agencies.  

Section 2 schedules this review. 

Status: 01/12/22 Introduced in House, Assigned to Energy & Environment 
 02/17/22 Referred amended to Appropriations 

UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  MONITOR 

CWC State Affairs Committee position:  Monitor 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITY REPORT 

COLORADO GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

2022 REGULAR SESSION 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_1012_01.pdf


2 
 

HB22-1151 CONCERNING MEASURES TO INCENTIVIZE WATER-WISE 
LANDSCAPES, AND, IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, CREATING A STATE 
PROGRAMTO FINANCE THE VOLUNTARY REPLACEMENT OF IRRIGATED 
TURF. 

House Sponsors:  Catlin and Rogers  Senate Sponsors:  Bridges and Simpson 

The bill requires the Colorado water conservation board (board) to develop a statewide program 
to provide financial incentives for the voluntary replacement of irrigated turf with water-wise 
landscaping (turf replacement program). The bill defines water-wise landscaping as a water- 
and plant-management practice that emphasizes using plants with lower water needs. Local 
governments, certain districts, Native American tribes, and nonprofit organizations with their 
own turf replacement programs may apply to the board for money to help finance their turf 
replacement programs. The board will contract with one or more third parties to administer one 
or more turf replacement programs in areas where local turf replacement programs do not exist. 

Amended to include language encouraging defensible space to reduce wildfire risk; modify 
funding language. 

Status: 02/04/2022   Introduced in House, Assigned to Agriculture, Livestock & Water 
 02/28/2022   Refer amended to Appropriations 
 

UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  SUPPORT 

CWC State Affairs Committee position:  Support 

 

SENATE BILLS 

SB22-114 CONCERNING FIRE SUPPRESSION PONDS. 

Section 1 of the bill makes legislative findings and declarations.  

Section 2 allows a board of county commissioners (board) to apply to the state engineer for the 
designation of a pond as a fire suppression pond. The director of the division of fire prevention 
and control (director) in the department of public safety is required to promulgate rules to 
establish criteria for boards, in consultation with fire protection districts, to use to identify and 
evaluate potential fire suppression ponds. For each pond that is identified and under 
consideration as a potential fire suppression pond, a board must provide notice of such fact to 
the state engineer and to interested parties included in the substitute water supply plan 
notification list established for the water division in which the pond is located. Section 2 also 
prohibits the state engineer from draining any pond: !  

• While the pond is under consideration for designation as a fire suppression pond;   
• If the state engineer has designated the pond as a fire suppression pond;   
• On and after the effective date of the bill, and until the date upon which the director 

promulgates rules, with exceptions.  
Section 2 also states that a fire suppression pond and the water associated with it: 

• Are not considered a water right;  
• Do not have a priority for the purpose of determining water rights; and  

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_1151_01.pdf
http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_114_01.pdf


3 
 

• May not be adjudicated as a water right.  
 

Section 3 requires the state engineer to review applications received from boards and, at the 
state engineer's discretion, designate ponds as fire suppression ponds. An application is 
presumed to be approved if the state engineer does not respond to the application within 63 
days after the application is received by the state engineer. The state engineer may not designate 
any pond as a fire suppression pond unless the pond existed as of January 1, 1975. Section 3 also 
allows the state engineer to impose reasonable requirements on a board as a condition of 
designating a pond as a fire suppression pond and requires a board and a fire protection district 
to inspect a fire suppression pond at least annually. The designation of a pond as a fire 
suppression pond expires 20 years after the date of the designation. Before the expiration, the 
board and the fire protection district must perform a needs assessment of the pond. If the needs 
assessment demonstrates that the pond is in compliance with criteria established in the 
director's rules, the board and fire protection district shall notify the state engineer of such fact, 
and the state engineer shall redesignate the pond as a fire suppression pond. If the needs 
assessment demonstrates that the pond is not in compliance with the criteria, the board and fire 
protection district may either:  

• Notify the state engineer that the designation of the pond as a fire suppression pond 
should be rescinded or allowed to expire; or  

• Provide to the state engineer a plan and a timeline for bringing the pond back into 
compliance with such criteria.  
 

Section 4 states that the designation of fire suppression ponds by the state engineer does not 
cause material injury to vested water rights. 
Amended to add and redefine criteria.  
https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.003.pdf  
 
Status: 02/03/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Agriculture & Natural Resources 
 03/03/2022  Refer amended to Appropriations 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  SUPPORT 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:  03/14/2022 Table  
 
SB22-115  CONCERNING CLARIFYING CERTAIN TERMS AS THE TERMS RELATE 
TO A LANDOWNER'S LIABILITY. 
 
Senate sponsors:  Jaquez Lewis and Gardner       House sponsors:  Soper and Tipper 
 
The bill clarifies the meaning of terms related to landowner liability and declares that the 
Colorado court of appeals and supreme court decisions in Rocky Mountain Planned 
Parenthood, Inc. v. Wagner should not be relied upon to the extent that those decisions 
determined:  

• The foreseeability of third-party criminal conduct based upon whether the goods or 
services offered by a landowner are controversial; and  

• That a landowner could be held liable as a substantial factor in causing harm without 
considering whether a third-party criminal act was the predominant cause of that harm. 

https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/leg.colorado.gov/2022A/amendments/SB114_L.003.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_115_01.pdf


4 
 

 
Status: 02/03/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Judiciary 
 02/16/2022 Refer to Consent Calendar Senate Committee of the Whole 
 02/22/2022 Senate Second Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 02/23/2022 Senate Third Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 02/23/2022 Introduced in House – Assigned to Judiciary 
 03/09/2022 Refer Amended to House Committee of the Whole 
 03/15/2022 House Second Reading Passed with Amendments 
 03/16/2022 House Third Reading Passed – No Amendments 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  SUPPORT 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:  Support 
 
 
SB22-029  CONCERNING WATER SPECULATION IN THE STATE 
 
Senate sponsors:  Coram and Donovan, Bridges, Jaquez Lewis   House sponsor:  McCormick 
 
Water Resources Review Committee. Section 1 of the bill prohibits a purchaser of 
agricultural water rights that are represented by shares in a mutual ditch company from 
engaging in investment water speculation. Investment water speculation is the purchase of 
agricultural water rights that are represented by shares in a mutual ditch company in the state 
with the intent, at the time of purchase, to profit from an increase in the water's value in a 
subsequent transaction or by receiving payment from another person for nonuse of all or a 
portion of the water subject to the water right. 
 On or after January 1, 2023, the state engineer or the state engineer's designee (state 
engineer) may investigate complaints of investment water speculation. If a purchaser holds, or 
by virtue of a proposed sale or transfer, will hold at least a minimum percent of the shares in a 
mutual ditch company, about which minimum percent the mutual ditch company must 
determine and notify the state engineer on or before December 31, 2022, there is a rebuttable 
presumption that the purchaser is engaged in investment water speculation. The state engineer 
may fine a purchaser up to $10,000 for a violation and require, for a period of up to 2 years after 
a fine has been imposed, that any sale or transfer of shares in a mutual ditch company to the 
purchaser be subject to approval by the state engineer.  
 If the state engineer believes that a complaint is frivolous or was filed for the purpose of 
harassing a seller or purchaser, the state engineer may refer the matter to the attorney general's 
office for the attorney general or the attorney general's designee (attorney general) to investigate 
and, if the attorney general determines that enforcement is warranted, bring a civil action in a 
court of competent jurisdiction alleging the complaint is frivolous or was filed for the purpose of 
harassment. If the attorney general prevails in the civil action, the court may fine a complainant 
up to $1,000, prohibit the complainant from filing any complaints alleging investment water 
speculation for up to one year, and grant attorney fees and court costs.  
 Section 2 requires the board of directors of a mutual ditch company to determine the 
minimum percent of agricultural water rights held by all of the shareholders in the mutual ditch 
company that a purchaser holds or, by virtue of the sale or transfer of shares in the mutual ditch 
company, will hold that creates a rebuttable presumption that the purchaser is engaging in 
investment water speculation. 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_029_01.pdf


5 
 

 Section 3 authorizes the attorney general to bring a civil action against a complainant if 
the state engineer refers the matter to the attorney general.  
 
Status:  01/12/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Agriculture & Natural Resources 
  
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:  OPPOSE 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:   
 
 
SB22-126  CONCERNING A REQUIREMENT THAT THE COLORADO WATER  
CONSERVATION BOARD PRIORITIZE WATER STORAGE IN THE SOUTH PLATTE 
RIVER BASIN IN CHOOSING PROJECTS TO FINANCE WITH MONEY FROM THE 
COLORADO WATER CONSERVATION BOARD CONSTRUCTION FUND. 
 
Senate Sponsors:  Sonnenberg and Donovan, Kirkmeyer, Lundeen, Scott, Simpson,Woodward. 
 
House sponsor:  Holtorf 
 
The Colorado water conservation board (board) finances water projects throughout the state. 
Current law requires the board to prioritize projects that will increase the beneficial 
consumptive use of Colorado's undeveloped compact-entitled waters. The bill includes within 
this priority a specific priority for projects that increase or improve water storage in the South 
Platte river basin as a means of increasing the beneficial consumptive use of undeveloped water 
entitled under the South Platte river compact and in a manner that reduces reliance on 
transmountain diversions. 
Amended to add language to legislative declaration; amends the priority language to direct 
funding priority to “projects that will increase the beneficial consumptive use of Colorado's 
undeveloped compact-entitled waters, including the South Platte River.” 
 
Status:  02/04/2022  Introduced in Senate, Assigned to Agriculture & Natural Resources 
 02/24/2022 Refer Amended – Consent Calendar to Senate Committee of the Whole 
 03/01/2022 Senate Second Reading Laid over to 03/07/2022 – No Amendments 
 03/07/2022 Senate Second Reading Laid over to 03/14/2022 – No Amendments 
 03/14/2022 Senate Second Reading Laid over to 03/21/2022 – No Amendments 
 
UGRWCD Legislative Committee position:   OPPOSE 
 
CWC State Affairs Committee position:  None 

http://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022A/bills/2022a_126_01.pdf


 

 

   
  UPPER GUNNISON RIVER WATER CONSERVANCY DISTRICT 
 
   MEMORANDUM 
    
  FROM:   John H. McClow, General Counsel   

TO:     Board of Directors 
   RE:     Lake Powell and Glen Canyon Dam  
 DATE:    March 17, 2022 

 
 
Given the recent press coverage regarding Lake Powell elevations, I will brief you on March 28 
on Colorado River System issues, especially Lake Powell. 
 
The materials attached include the forecasts from the Bureau of Reclamation’s March 24-month 
study for Lake Powell and Blue Mesa Reservoir. 
 
The materials also include design specifications for Glen Canyon Dam to help understand the 
significance of storage elevations. 



Most Probable Inflow*

March 2022 24-Month Study

Lake Powell

OPERATION  PLAN  FOR  COLORADO  RIVER  SYSTEM  RESERVOIRS

Reservoir Elev

End of Month

(Ft)

Bank

Storage

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Total

Release

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Regulated

Inflow

(1000 Ac-Ft)Date

Evap

Losses

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Bypass

Release

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Lees

Ferry Gage

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Unreg

Inflow

(1000 Ac-Ft)

EOM

Storage

(1000 Ac-Ft)

PowerPlant

Release

(1000 Ac-Ft)

 700  8844 3566.71 700  698 4761 11 299  0Mar 2021*  297

 628  8504 3562.37 628  635 4734 17 279  0Apr 2021H  289

 624  8366 3560.57 624  649 4723 20 495  0May 2021I  543

 651  8328 3560.06 651  663 4720 31 640  0Jun 2021S  809

 767  7866 3553.88 767  763 4683 36 305  0Jul 2021T  193

 801  7511 3548.96 801  785 4655 35 452  0Aug 2021O  292

 622  7258 3545.36 622  625 4634 31 380  0Sep 2021R  159

 8229  8229  8279 277 4064  0WY  2021  3502

 481  7181 3544.25 481  489 4628 21 419  0Oct 2021I  317

 500  7016 3541.84 500  497 4615 20 342  0Nov 2021C  346

 600  6713 3537.33 600  612 4591 16 290  0Dec 2021A  266

 673  6335 3531.52 673  709 4561 4 269  0Jan 2022L  249

 540  6048 3526.97 540  592 4538 4 235  0Feb 2022*  215

 575  5742 3521.97 575  591 4513 7 252  0Mar 2022  300

 501  5665 3520.68 501  519 4507 12 429  0Apr 2022  500

 599  6420 3532.85 599  618 4567 14 1429  0May 2022  1550

 678  7108 3543.19 678  697 4622 25 1446  0Jun 2022  1850

 809  6818 3538.91 809  832 4599 31 528  0Jul 2022  500

 858  6363 3531.95 858  882 4563 30 396  0Aug 2022  250

 666  6072 3527.35 666  683 4539 27 379  0Sep 2022  240

 7480  7480  7722 213 6412  0WY  2022  6582

 480  5988 3526.00 480  492 4533 18 408  0Oct 2022  353

 500  5869 3524.05 500  503 4523 18 388  0Nov 2022  411

 600  5629 3520.08 600  603 4504 14 355  0Dec 2022  352

 723  5278 3514.07 723  732 4476 4 347  0Jan 2023  347

 639  5035 3509.77 639  650 4456 4 380  0Feb 2023  396

 675  4865 3506.71 675  691 4443 6 499  0Mar 2023  613

 601  4977 3508.74 601  619 4452 10 732  0Apr 2023  935

 599  5951 3525.40 599  618 4530 13 1664  0May 2023  2114

 628  7251 3545.27 628  647 4634 25 2057  0Jun 2023  2478

 755  7137 3543.62 755  778 4625 32 664  0Jul 2023  709

 758  6851 3539.40 758  782 4602 32 481  0Aug 2023  361

 579  6690 3536.98 579  596 4589 29 434  0Sep 2023  312

 7537  7537  7712 204 8408  0WY  2023  9381

 480  6659 3536.51 480  492 4586 20 466  0Oct 2023  417

 500  6598 3535.58 500  503 4582 19 453  0Nov 2023  446

 600  6454 3533.37 600  603 4570 15 460  0Dec 2023  352

 723  6198 3529.37 723  732 4550 4 451  0Jan 2024  347

 639  6048 3526.96 639  650 4538 4 481  0Feb 2024  396

* Based on the Colorado River Basin Forecast Center's Most Probable Water Supply Forecast Model Run ID: 3180 Processed On: 3/11/2022  12:41:57PM 



Most Probable Inflow*

March 2022 24-Month Study

Blue Mesa Reservoir

OPERATION  PLAN  FOR  COLORADO  RIVER  SYSTEM  RESERVOIRS

Reservoir Elev

End of Month

(Ft)

Live

Storage

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Total

Release

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Regulated

Inflow

(1000 Ac-Ft)Date

Evap

Losses

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Power

Release

(1000 Ac-Ft)

Bypass

Release

(1000 Ac-Ft)

UnReg

Inflow

(1000 Ac-Ft)

* Mar 2021  30  32  7465.07  399 0  32  0 29

H Apr 2021  46  79  7459.68  365 1  79  0 47

I May 2021  83  98  7457.14  350 1  96  2 90

S Jun 2021  119  77  7463.84  391 1  77  0 127

T Jul 2021  58  98  7457.21  350 1  98  0 53

O Aug 2021  53  93  7450.20  310 1  93  0 45

R Sep 2021  25  94  7436.58  241 1  94  0 19

 WY  2021  528  715 6  713  2 518

I Oct 2021  26  58  7429.52  209 0  58  0 27

C Nov 2021  27  16  7431.94  220 0  16  0 27

A Dec 2021  22  11  7434.40  231 0  11  0 22

L Jan 2022  20  14  7435.60  236 0  14  0 20

* Feb 2022  19  14  7436.57  241 0  14  0 18

Mar 2022  28  19  7438.25  249 0  19  0 27

Apr 2022  54  49  7439.22  254 0  49  0 55

May 2022  180  196  7435.75  237 1  185  11 195

Jun 2022  203  54  7462.89  385 1  54  0 225

Jul 2022  90  81  7464.02  392 1  81  0 85

Aug 2022  59  76  7461.21  375 1  76  0 50

Sep 2022  42  76  7455.43  340 1  32  44 34

WY  2022  769  665 6  610  55 784

Oct 2022  38  72  7449.34  306 0  0  72 35

Nov 2022  32  16  7452.19  321 0  0  16 30

Dec 2022  28  16  7454.34  334 0  16  0 26

Jan 2023  27  16  7456.16  344 0  16  0 25

Feb 2023  25  14  7457.97  355 0  14  0 23

Mar 2023  39  18  7461.44  376 0  18  0 38

Apr 2023  81  29  7469.39  427 1  29  0 78

May 2023  195  56  7488.42  565 1  56  0 203

Jun 2023  234  137  7500.30  661 1  137  0 250

Jul 2023  99  81  7502.19  676 1  81  0 86

Aug 2023  71  79  7501.13  668 1  79  0 56

Sep 2023  46  74  7497.64  639 1  74  0 35

WY  2023  915  608 8  521  88 887

Oct 2023  38  70  7493.62  606 1  70  0 36

Nov 2023  32  15  7495.68  623 0  15  0 31

Dec 2023  28  40  7494.14  610 0  40  0 26

Jan 2024  27  40  7492.37  596 0  40  0 25

Feb 2024  25  38  7490.72  583 0  38  0 23

* Based on the Colorado River Basin Forecast Center's Most Probable Water Supply Forecast Model Run ID: 3180 Processed On: 3/11/2022  12:41:57PM 



February 2022 CRMMS-ESP 5-Year Projections
Chance of Lake Powell Reaching Critical Reservoir Elevations

All results computed as the chance of falling below the threshold in any month of the water year.
* There is a negligible chance that Lake Powell will fall below 3,490 in WY 2022.

WY 2022* WY 2023 WY 2024 WY 2025 WY 2026

Lake Powell less than 3,525 feet 90% 77% 50% 50% 37%

Lake Powell less than 3,490 feet (minimum 
power pool) N 23% 27% 27% 23%

Lake Powell less than 3,375 feet
(dead pool = 3,370 feet) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

7



Releasing water from Glen Canyon Dam
• Power generation

• 8 penstocks / turbines / generators
• Center line elevation: 3,470 ft
• Up to ~33,000 cfs

• River Outlet Works (Bypass Tubes)
• 4 outlets / valves
• Center line elevation: 3,374 ft
• Up to 15,000 cfs

• Spillway
• 2 spillways
• Crest elevation: 3,648 ft
• Up to 276,000 cfs

13



Glen Canyon Dam – Upstream Elevation View

14



Glen Canyon Dam – Sectional View

15



Glen Canyon Dam – Plan View

16



 



AGENDA ITEM 5
Steve Pope Introduction



AGENDA ITEM 6
Jeff Derry, Dust on Snow Presentation



AGENDA ITEM 7 
BREAK



AGENDA ITEM 8 
Basin Water Supply Report 



1 
220318 Board Packet Memo_final 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 

 
DATE: March 18, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: Basin Water Supply Information 
 

The information supplied as part of this memorandum is a monthly feature and includes information about 
drought conditions in the basin, reservoir storage, reservoir operations, and the Upper Gunnison 
Cloudseeding Program.   
 
Drought Conditions: 
 
According to the Drought Monitor at drought.gov as of March 8, 2022, drought conditions have improved 
slightly from the February numbers with 57% of the state experiencing severe (D2) or extreme (D3) 
drought conditions, which is down from 62%.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
220318 Board Packet Memo_final 

Gunnison County 
 
Drought conditions in Gunnison County have remained the same since February 8, 2022 with  the 29% in 
Abnormally Dry (D0) conditions, 40% in Moderate (D1), and 31% in Severe (D2) drought conditions.    

Hinsdale County 

As with Gunnison County, drought conditions in Hinsdale County have remained the same since February 
8, 2022.  As of March 8, 42% of the county is experiencing Moderate (D1) and 58% is experiencing Severe 
(D2) drought conditions. 

Saguache County 

Of the three counties, Saguache County is the only one that has experienced any change in their drought 
conditions since February 8.  In February 71% of the county was experiencing Severe (D2) conditions and 
29% was Extreme (D3).  These number have adjusted slightly with 88% now experiencing Severe (D2) 
condition and only 12% in the Extreme (D3) category. 

Precipitation on the western slope has seen a slight change from February which is illustrated in the graph 
below.  Gunnison and Hinsdale counties saw precipitation ranging from 2 to 3.7 inches in the first two 
weeks of the month.  Saguache County precipitation ranged anywhere from 2 inches in the southwest to .25 
inches in the central and southeastern portions of the county. 
 

 

 



3 
220318 Board Packet Memo_final 

Reservoir Storage 

As of March 14, reservoir storage in the Gunnison Basin is at 54% of full.  The reservoirs in the Upper 
Gunnison Basin, Taylor and Blue Mesa, are at 54% and 29% respectively.  This is reflected in the tea-cup 
diagram below.  

 

 

Aspinall Unit Operations 

This update was provided by the Bureau of Reclamation and is dated March 17, 2022.   

The current snowpack (as of March 17) is 117% of average for the Upper Gunnison Basin.  Based upon 
this update, the unregulated inflow for April-July is projected to be 92 of average which is slightly higher 
than the March 1 forecast which was 88%.  The current content of Blue Mesa Reservoir is 241,000 acre-
feet which is 29% of full with a current inflow of 400 cfs.  The projected maximum fill amount for Blue 
Mesa for 2022 is 366,000 acre-feet which is 44% of full, and the end of year content (December 31st) is 
projected to be 269,000 acre-feet which is 32% of full. 

Releases from the Aspinall Unit will be increased from 475 cfs to 775 cfs beginning on March 21st .  The 
increase is being made for the start of diversions into the Gunnison Tunnel.  The scheduled release change 
is subject to changes in river flows and weather conditions. 

 



4 
220318 Board Packet Memo_final 

Taylor Park Reservoir Operations: 

The Bureau of Reclamation provided an update on Taylor Park Reservoir operations using the March 1 
forecast from the Colorado Basin River Forecast Center.  This forecast indicated that there will be 96,000 
acre-feet of runoff flowing into the reservoir which is 102% of average.  This forecast puts the year type in 
the Average Year category.  Based on this year type, there is a requirement for a spring peak release of 445 
cfs for 5 days. 

The preliminary operations plan indicates that the reservoir could fill to a maximum seasonal content of 
95,000 acre-feet which is 89% full.  Releases from Taylor Park Reservoir continue at the winter flow rate 
of 72 cfs and it is planned to continue at that rate through the month of March.  Snowpack in the Taylor 
River watershed is at 97% of normal.  February snow accumulation was the same as January at 69% of 
average. 

The next TLUG meeting is scheduled for April 7, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. 

Lake San Cristobal Update: 

The current elevation (March 15) for Lake San Cristobal is 8994.23 feet which is down slightly from the 
February reading of 8,994.29.  The flows out of the reservoir are currently at 12.0 cfs.   

Lake Powell Update: 

On March 16, 2021, we received this statement from Becky Mitchell regarding Lake Powell elevation. 
 

Commissioner Mitchell Statement on Lake Powell Elevation 3525' 
 

March 16, 2021 (Denver, CO) - As of March 15, Lake Powell, a major reservoir that feeds water to the 
Lower Colorado River Basin, fell below elevation 3525 feet. This is the target elevation identified within 
the Drought Contingency Plan that provides a buffer to hydropower.  
 
The decline in Lake Powell was caused by over 20 years of low inflows in the Colorado River System, 
coupled with depletions that exceeded supplies. The imbalance between depletions and available River 
flows has historically been compensated by taking water from storage in Lake Powell and Lake Mead to 
provide for downstream depletions, thus causing declines in reservoir elevations.   
 
Below is a statement from Colorado River Commissioner Becky Mitchell: 
 
“Lake Powell hit elevation 3525 feet this week, which is a direct result of depletions from our major 
reservoirs over the last 20 years coupled with low flows into Lake Powell. As Lake Powell and Lake 
Mead have declined, water users in the Upper Colorado River Basin have been living on the front lines 
of climate change. The Upper Basin states of Colorado, New Mexico, Utah, and Wyoming have been 
taking water cuts for 20 years due to prolonged drought, while continuing to meet our Compact 
obligations. On top of this, water has been provided from Flaming Gorge and Blue Mesa Reservoirs in 
an effort to protect Lake Powell. Going forward, all who rely on the Colorado River System must learn 
to live with what the River provides and adapt to variability of water supply.” 
 



5 
220318 Board Packet Memo_final 

 

 This is the post that was provided on March 16, 2022 via social media from the Colorado River Basin: 

 

Lake Powell has officially dipped just below 3,525 feet in elevation, reflecting the Colorado River Basin’s 
dry winter season. The dip is temporary and was reflected in last night’s end-of-day hydrology report. The 
reservoir’s elevation is expected to climb above 3,525 feet through the course of the spring runoff season. 
 
The target elevation of 3,525 feet provides a 35-foot buffer and allows time for response actions to help 
prevent Lake Powell from dropping below minimum power pool (elevation 3,490 feet), the lowest point at 
which Glen Canyon Dam can generate hydropower. Reclamation’s Upper Colorado Basin Region and the 
Upper Division States, with the assistance of the Upper Colorado River Commission, are preparing a 
Drought Response Operations Plan that will propose additional actions to help protect Lake Powell 
elevations in 2022 if appropriate. 
 

Cloudseeding Report (North American Weather Consultants; NAWC) & SWE in the Snowpack: 

According to the North American Weather Consultants report dated March 2, 2022, the month of February 
was relatively dry with only a few storm events impacting western Colorado during the second half of the 
month.  There were only three storm that were seeded for the month of February, on February 16-17, 21-22 
and 23. There were a total of 297.5 generator hours used in February which was significantly higher than 
January where only 78.5 hours were used.  This is reflected in the graph provided below. 

 

 

 

 



6 
220318 Board Packet Memo_final 

The table below shows snow water equivalent for the water year as of March 1, 2022 at the five Blue Mesa 
SNOTEL sites.   

 
  Measurement 

Site 
Snow Water Equivalent (inch) Water Year Precipitation (inch) 
3-1-22 Percent of Average 3-1-22 Percent of Average 

Butte 11.6 112 12.6 110 
Schofield Pass 30.5 126 32.8 136 

Park Cone 9.6 117 11.1 125 
Porphyry Creek 13.0 107 13.8 124 

Slumgullion 8.7 82 8.8 84 
Upper Gunnison 

Basin %  109  116 

As of March 1, 2022, snow water equivalent in the Upper Gunnison Basin was above normal, with a basin-
wide average of 109%.  Water year precipitation was also above normal, at an average of 116%.  

 

Think More Snow! 



AGENDA ITEM 9
General Manager and Committee Updates



AGENDA ITEM 9
Treasurer’s Report



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   UGRWCD Board Members  

FROM:  Sonja Chavez, General Manager 

DATE:  March 18, 2022  

SUBJECT:  General Manager, Committee, and Staff Updates 

 

I. Treasurer’s Report (Bill Nesbitt) 

 

II. General Manager’s Update 

 

A. Colorado Airborne Snow Measurement (CASM): A new collective of partners 

including the Upper Gunnison District organized into a group known as CASM to develop 

an expansive airborne snow flight program for critical mountain regions across the entire 

state of Colorado.  Airborne Snow Observatory (ASO) flight forecasts have been shown to 

have an accuracy of 98% in predicting Snow Water Equivalent (SWE) which is the amount 

of water in snowpack and dramatically taking out a lot of the guess work related to 

forecasting inflow.  On March 15th, the Colorado Water Conservation Board approved a 

$1.9M grant in support of CASM flights in all critical mountain watersheds including the 

Upper Gunnison Basin.  The total for the comprehensive CASM program is estimated to 

cost $15M annually. With this infusion of funding from CWCB, the State is hopeful that 

the multi-million dollar program can be covered by an array of agencies including 

conservation and conservancy districts, water utilities, Reclamation, state and local 

governments, ski industry and many others. These flights will greatly facilitate refinement 

of existing inflow forecast models including the work of the District on use of the WRF 

Hydro Model being developed for the Taylor Park sub-basin with Dave Gochis of the 

University of Colorado Atmospheric Research Center.  The Taylor and East River sub-

basins will be flown this year and perhaps portions of Ohio Creek (TBD). 

 

Related to this, Reclamation just released The Emerging Technologies in Snow Monitoring 

report. The report identifies several under-utilized emerging technologies for snow 

measurement and other finding.  If you’re interested in learning more, go to: 

https://www.usbr.gov/research/docs/news/EmergingTechnologiesInSnowMonitoring_Re

port508.pdf 

 

B. Gunnison Valley Water Smart Work Group: The UGRWCD held its first meeting of 

2022 as lead coordinator of the municipal Gunnison Valley Water SMART group after 

High Country Conservation Advocates (HCCA) passed down the baton. The meeting was 

well attended, and we received a lot of valuable input from participants on topics or issues 

https://www.usbr.gov/research/docs/news/EmergingTechnologiesInSnowMonitoring_Report508.pdf
https://www.usbr.gov/research/docs/news/EmergingTechnologiesInSnowMonitoring_Report508.pdf


of importance or concern around municipal water use in the Upper Gunnison Valley.  

Minutes from that meeting have been included in your packet as Exhibit A.  

 

Our next activity is slated for late March or early April and will be a lunch time presentation 

around planning for growth in the valley and the availability of actual wet water. More 

information will be provided as it becomes available. 

 

C.  Joint Party Status filed for WQCC Regulation #35 Hearing: A request for party status 

was submitted to the Water Quality Control Commission (WQCC) of the State of Colorado 

related to the upcoming June Rulemaking Hearing for Regulation #35 (Gunnison and 

Lower Dolores River Basins). Ashley Bembenek led the effort to submit a request for “joint 

party status” on several proposed rule making matters including but not limited to issue 

affecting Coal Creek (COGUUG12) (Keystone Mine and water quality standards for Coal 

Creek) and Marshall Creek (COGUUG21) (Homestake Pitch Uranium Mine).  The joint 

parties are identified as the “Upper Gunnison Parties” and include the Town of Crested 

Butte, Gunnison County, Coal Creek Watershed Coalition, High Country Conservation 

Advocates, Northwest Colorado Council of Governments Water Quality and Quantity 

Committee and the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District. This filing allows 

the Upper Gunnison Parties to provide testimony or additional data or information. A copy 

of the Joint Party Status filing has been included in your packet as Exhibit B. 

 

D. Taylor Park Hydro Power Development 30% Design: A preliminary or thirty-percent 

design report for the Taylor Park Hydro Power Development project was provided to the 

UGRWCD for review and comment. The UGRWCD made several inquiries around 

sedimentation rate and reservoir capacity, estimated energy generation around years of 

hydrology used, and lack of information on Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 

(SCADA).  According to the consultant there is no evidence of sedimentation around the 

intake, estimated energy generation is actually higher using the last 20 years of hydrology 

due to the fact that the reservoir was operated at a lower level between 1972 – 2002, and 

SCADA information will be provided at 60 percent design stage and the Uncompahgre 

Valley Water Users Association (UVWUA) dam tender will be responsible for monitoring 

alarms and notifications with support from GCEA. Steve Pope, UVWUA General 

Manager, will be joining the District at our March meeting, so please feel free to ask 

questions. 

 

E. 2022 UGRWCD Conference (a.k.a. Upper Gunnison River Basin Water Roundup) 

 

The UGRWCD is going to be having its first inaugural “Upper Gunnison River Basin 

Water Roundup” conference or “Roundup”.  The Roundup will take place from June 9 to 

June 10th just in front of the Gunnison River Festival.  The District is in the process of 

reserving the IBar Ranch for all activities.  At this time, preliminary plans look as 

follows: 

 



Thursday (June 9th) 

 

• 8:30 a.m.: Conference Kick-off (light breakfast and networking) 

• 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.: Conference Speakers 

• 12:00 p.m. – 1:00 p.m.: Lunch with Guest Speaker 

• 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.: Conference Speakers 

• 5:00 p.m. – 5:30 p.m.: Happy Hour 

• 5:30 p.m. – 6:30 p.m.: Dinner 

• 7:00 p.m. – 8:30 p.m.: Tomichi Cr. Acoustic Bat Detection Nature Walk 

• 8:30 p.m. – 9:30 p.m. Fireside Chat w/TBD 

Friday (June 10th) 

• 8:30 a.m.: Coffee and Networking 

• 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m.: Conference Speakers 

• 12:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.: Explore Gunnison on Your Own 

• 4:00 p.m. – 5:30 p.m.: Guest Speaker and Heavy Appetizers (Almont Resort?) 

• 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.: Sunset Float Almont to Shady Island or Enjoy Taylor                 

Downriver Race 

• 8:30 p.m.: Wailers Concert at the IBar (Discounted Tickets to Conference 

Registrants, e.g., $30/person) 

Saturday (June 11) – Gunnison River Festival!!! 

 

III.  Executive Committee Report (Director Pierce or McPhail) 

 

IV. Taylor Local Users Group (Director Sabrowski) 

 

Draft Taylor Local Users Group meeting notes attached as Exhibit C. 

 

V. Watershed Management Planning (WMP) Committee Update (Sonja Chavez and 

Director McPhail) 

 

March 14th Watershed Management Planning Committee meeting minutes attached as 

Exhibit D. 

 

VI. Grant Committee Update (Beverly Richards and Director Fonken) 

 

See District Grant Program memorandum from Beverly (Water Resource Specialist). 

 

Presentation by Beverly on 2022 projects submitted and recommended for funding 

approval. 



• Board Action Requested: Approval of Grant Committee recommendations for 2022 

District Grant Program funding. 

 

VII.  Wet Meadows Update (Cheryl Cwelich) 

 

See Wet Meadows Program Update memorandum from Cheryl (Watershed Program 

Coordinator). 

• Board Action Requested: Signed GOCO grant application resolution.  

 

VIII.  Education and Outreach Update (Sue Uerling) 

 

See Education and Outreach memorandum from Sue Uerling, Administrative Assistant and 

Communications Support Specialist. 

 

IX. Scientific Endeavors Update (Director Carroll) 

 

X. Gunnison River Festival Update (Director Fonken) 

 



1 
220301 Summary Water Smart Group meeting_final 

TO: Gunnison Water Smart Stakeholder Work Group 
FROM: Beverly Richards, UGRWCD Water Resource Specialist 
DATE: March 1, 2022 
SUBJECT: Gunnison Water Smart Group Meeting Summary 

A meeting of the group was held on March 1 at 1:00 p.m. 

Ashley Bembenek (CCWC), Julie Nania (HCCA), Shea Earley (Town of Crested Butte), Mike Fabbre 
(MCBW&S), Leah Desposato (Town of Mt. Crested Butte), David Gardner (City of Gunnison), Anton 
Sinkewich (City of Gunnison), Rachel Sabbato (Gunnison County), Sonja Chavez, Cheryl Cwelich, 
Beverly Richards, and Sue Uerling (UGRWCD) were in attendance. 

Agenda topics included what participants are hoping to gain from these meetings, member updates, , 
opportunities to collaborate on conservation messaging, an update water related funding in the Bipartisan 
Infrastructure & Investment Jobs Act (a.k.a. IIJA), other available funding opportunities, and State water-
related legislative updates.   

As a result of these discussions, following is a summary of common themes/topics identified by the group 
related to topics of interest moving forward: 

• Water Security
• Conservation
• Population growth and development and water supply needed at full build-out
• Continued relationship with UGRWCD concerning water rights out of Meridian Lake Reservoir
• Collaborative and cohesive conservation messaging
• Basin wide water quality consciousness (e.g., not buying plastic bottled water, recycling)
• Water supply distribution efficiency (e.g., diversion infrastructure upgrades)
• Support of water loss studies and implementation efforts to address
• Need for water storage
• Source water protection and wildfire risk assessment and mitigation measures
• Regular communication and awareness among entities and working together
• Capacity building and support
• IIJA and other funding available for significant infrastructure improvement needs throughout

valley

Meeting participants also provided project updates (in progress and anticipated).  This information will be 
compiled on a spreadsheet and will be included in a Google Drive file so that all participants can add to 
the list of needs.  This information will be used by UGRWCD in our Watershed Management Planning 
process so that we can prioritize projects as we work to support our constituents in accessing funding at 
the state and federal level.  We will encourage regular updates to this spreadsheet of information so that 
stakeholders can update information on costs, timelines or urgency as projects move forward. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 

Exhibit A



BEFORE THE WATER QUALITY CONTROL COMMISSION 
STATE OF COLORADO  

IN THE MATTER OF CONSIDERATION OF THE ADOPTION OF REVISED WATER QUALITY 
CLASSIFICATIONS, STANDARDS, AND DESIGNATIONS FOR MULTIPLE SEGMENTS IN THE SAN 
JUAN AND DOLORES RIVER BASINS, REGULATION #34 (5 CCR 1002-34) AND GUNNISON AND 
LOWER DOLORES RIVER BASINS, REGULATION #35 (5 CCR 1002-35)

REQUEST FOR PARTY STATUS FOR THE UPPER GUNNISON PARTIES 

The Town of Crested Butte (the “Town”), Gunnison County (the "County"), Coal Creek 
Watershed Coalition (“CCWC”), High Country Conservation Advocates (“HCCA”), Northwest 
Colorado Council of Governments Water Quality/Quantity Committee (“QQ”), and the Upper 
Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (“UGRWCD”), collectively referred to as the 
“Upper Gunnison Parties”, by and through the undersigned, respectfully request party status in 
the above-referenced matter. 

The Upper Gunnison Parties are participating in this matter because of their interest and stake in 
several proposed revisions to Regulation 35, including but not limited to issues affecting Coal 
Creek (COGUUG12) and Marshall Creek (COGUUG21). 

The facts that entitle the Upper Gunnison Parties to be admitted as a party to this rulemaking are 
as follows: 

1. Town interests:

a. In February 2016, the Town and the County entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (“2016 MOU”) with Mt. Emmons Mining Company (“MEMC”),
the Colorado Department of Public Health and the Environment (“CDPHE”), its
Water Quality Control Division (“WQCD”) and Air Pollution Control Division
(“APCD”), Colorado Department of Natural Resources (“DNR”), and its Division
of Reclamation Mining and Safety (“DRMS”). The 2016 MOU outlines the tasks
that the signatories will undertake to address the Keystone Mine site in the Coal
Creek Watershed. In accordance with these tasks, the parties have been working
collaboratively to develop water quality standards for Coal Creek. The Town and
the County entered into a related Memorandum of Understanding with MEMC on
July 20, 2021 (“2021 MOU”).

b. Coal Creek is the municipal water supply for the Town and within the Town’s
Watershed Protection District.

2. County interests:

a. The County is also a signatory to the 2016 and 2021 MOUs.

b. Gunnison County is the headwaters of the Gunnison River. The County strives to
preserve and promote the well-being of the County’s citizens, natural environment, and rural 

Exhibit B



character. The Gunnison River and its tributaries are the backbone of the County’s economy and 
community. The County is participating in this rulemaking to monitor and provide meaningful 
input on proposals that may impact water quality in the Upper Gunnison Basin including but not 
limited to proposals for Marshall Creek. 

 
c. Marshall Creek flows into Tomichi Creek, which is a water supply for ranchers, 

residents, visitors, wildlife, and other users in Gunnison County. 
 
3. CCWC interests: 
 
 a. CCWC, a 501(c)(3) organization, has been actively working to “restore and 
protect” the Coal Creek Watershed since 2004. CCWC has been involved in watershed planning 
and remediation projects with local, state, and federal agencies, the public, and nongovernmental 
organizations. CCWC communicates water quality, and watershed conditions and needs, in an 
effort to increase public awareness of watershed issues with the goal of fostering an educated and 
informed community of environmental stewards. 
 

b. CCWC collects a substantial portion of the water quality data included in the Coal 
Creek proposal and is participating in this rulemaking to understand and meaningfully respond to 
proposals that may affect Coal Creek.   
 
4. HCCA’s interests. 
 
HCCA’s mission is to protect the health and natural beauty of the land, rivers, and wildlife in and 
around Gunnison County now and for future generations. HCCA is a 45-year-old grassroots 
organization that collaborates with interested and affected parties to protect public lands, 
endangered species, rangelands, and water resources. HCCA is interested in matters that may 
impact local drinking water resources and is more broadly interested in the preservation of the 
quality of water resources of the Upper Gunnison Basin. 
 
5. QQ’s interests. 
 
QQ, a committee of Northwest Colorado Council of Governments, is an association of elected 
and appointed officials from municipalities, counties, and special districts in the headwaters of 
the Gunnison, Colorado, and Yampa river basins. QQ’s purpose is to protect or improve regional 
water quality conditions and to assist member efforts to do the same. QQ comprises 42 member 
local governments; membership is provided as Attachment 1.  
 
6. UGRWCD’s interests. 
 
UGRWCD’s mission is to be an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the 
Upper Gunnison River Basin. UGRWCD conducts water quality monitoring, water management, 
public education, and various planning efforts and projects in furtherance of its mission, often in 
partnership with other Upper Gunnison Parties. The UGRWCD is participating in this 
rulemaking to understand and meaningfully respond to proposals that may affect the Upper 
Gunnison Basin. 



 
Respectfully submitted this 16th day of March, 2022.  
 
 
 
 

  
Torie Jarvis, #46848 
NWCCOG Water Quality/Water Quantity Committee 
PO Box 2308  
Silverthorne, CO 80498 
Phone: 970-596-5039 
qqwater@nwccog.org 

 
Ashley Bembenek 
Alpine Environmental Consultants LLC 
379 Shavano St. 
Crested Butte, CO 81224 
Phone: 970-251-0029 
abembenek@yahoo.com  
 
Barbara J. B. Green, #15022 
Town Attorney, Town of Crested Butte 
Sullivan Green Seavy, LLC  
3223 Arapahoe Ave., Suite 300  
Boulder, CO 80303  
phone: 303-355-4405  
barbara@sullivangreenseavy.com 
 
Matthew Hoyt, #51792 
Gunnison County Attorney 
200 E. Virginia Avenue 
Gunnison, CO 81230 
phone: 970-641-5300 
email: mhoyt@gunnisoncounty.org 
 
Julie Nania, #44310 
for High Country Conservation Advocates 
P.O. Box 1066  
Crested Butte, CO 81224  
phone: 509-999-0012  
email: julie@hccacb.org 
 
John H. McClow, #6185 
General Counsel 
Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 



210 West Spencer, Suite 2B 
Gunnison, Colorado 81230 
Phone: 970-641-6065 
schavez@ugrwcd.org 



 
ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Northwest Colorado Council of Governments  
Water Quality/ Quantity Committee Membership   

03/15/22 
 

County  
Eagle County Pitkin County 
Grand County Summit County 
Gunnison County  

Municipal  
Aspen Gypsum 
Basalt Hot Sulphur Springs 
Breckenridge Kremmling 
Carbondale Minturn 
Crested Butte Silverthorne 
Dillon Steamboat Springs 
Eagle Vail 
Fraser Winter Park 
Granby Yampa 
Grand Lake  

Water and Sanitation  
Basalt Sanitation District Grand County Water and Sanitation 

District 
Bellyache Ridge Metro District Hamilton Creek Metro District 
Copper Mountain Metro Consolidated District Mid-Valley Metro District 
Dillon Valley Metro District Silver Creek Water District 
Eagle River Water and Sanitation District Silverthorne Dillon Joint Sewer 

Authority 
East Dillon Water District Snowmass Water and Sanitation  
Fraser Sanitation District White Horse Springs Water & 

Sanitation 
Granby Sanitation District Winter Park West Water & Sanitation 

Associate Member  
Colorado River Water Conservation District   
Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District  

 



1 

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 

FROM: Taylor Local Users Group (TLUG) 

DATE: March 7, 2021 

SUBJECT: Taylor Local Users Group Meeting Notes 

A TLUG meeting was held on Monday, March 7, 2022 via Zoom 
video/teleconference.  Attending the meeting were the following TLUG 

members: 

Ryan Birdsey, representative for flat water recreation interests 

Ernie Cockrell, representative for Taylor Placer 
Pete Dunda, representative for property owners  
Roark Kiklevich, representative for wade fishing interests 

Don Sabrowski, UGRWCD Board representative and TLUG Chair 
Mark Schumacher, representative for rafting/boating interests 

Andy Spann, representative for irrigation interests 

Also present:  Rory Birdsey (Taylor Park Marina); John Bocchino (Riffle and 

Rise LLC); Reece Carpenter (BOR); Ryan Christensen, (BOR); Steve Cook 
(Crystal Creek HOA), Doug Forshagen (Crystal Creek HOA); David Gochis 

(National Center for Atmospheric Research-NCAR); Erik Knight (BOR); Dirk 
Schumacher (Three Rivers Resort); Ed Warner (BOR); Jason White (Crested 
Butte Anglers) and Sonja Chavez, Cheryl Cwelich; Beverly Richards and Sue 

Uerling (all UGRWCD staff)   

Chair Don Sabrowski called the meeting to order at 1 pm.  Don asked if there 

were any comments or changes to the September 2, 2021 Meeting Summary.  
Ernie Cockrell noted that in the top paragraph on page 2, at the end of the 

sentence, it should read, “which is 300 acre-feet below the 60,000 acre-feet 
‘minimum storage objective for the year’.”  Also, on page 2 in the third 
paragraph in the 11th line, Ernie stated the sentence should also read “meet or 

exceed the 60,000 acre-feet ‘minimum storage objective’.”  

Exhibit C



2 
 

 

 
Erik Knight of the Bureau of Reclamation provided an update on Taylor River 

Operations.  Erik noted that the Colorado River Basin Forecast Center is now 
predicting 96,000-acre-feet maximum runoff during April through July 2022.  

This is up about 3,000 acre-feet from their last forecast and it does not include 
any consideration for the snowfall in the basin the first week in March, as their 
report was prepared March 1st.  Erik noted that they are now using the most 

recent thirty years of historical inflows to come up with their “average inflow” 
for the model and thus, the forecast has been reduced to 94,000 acre-feet.  
Erik noted that this current report puts us in the “average year” category. Per 

the Stipulation Agreement, a minimum 5 day peak flow release is required and 
can be scheduled during the period May 1 through June 30th.  Erik noted that 

the peak runoff is currently predicted to be in the first half of June 2022.  Erik 
reviewed the tables showing predicted inflows, snowpack and releases and 
noted that if everything stays the same, Taylor Reservoir would be at 70,500 

acre-feet by October 2022. Erik noted that there is still plenty of time for the 
forecast to change either direction.  Erik asked if there were any questions. 

 
Steve Cook (public) said these charts are really helpful for the group.  Steve 
wondered if there was any interest by the group in upping flows sooner than 

April 1st to benefit the fishery.  Erik Knight said that this would be a question 
for the group and could definitely be part of the discussion.  
 

Ernie Cockrell asked why the projections are based on using the year-end 
minimum storage level of 70,000 acre-feet instead of setting the minimum 

storage objective to a higher level knowing that every year we start out with a 
lot of model error.  Ernie suggested using a higher end of year storage objective 
of 73,000 acre-feet or higher early in the season to provide cushion.  Ernie 

noted that we can continue to look at the forecast each month and change this 
as necessary but that this is the only opportunity to hold back water early in 
the season so that we aren’t scrambling to meet our year-end storage objective.  

 
David Gochis of the National Center for Atmospheric Research said they have 

not yet released any forecasting reports but should be generating the first set 
in about two weeks.  David noted that they will be using the readings from the 
new gauges at Texas Creek and Willow Creek once they are back online 

sometime around the first of April and once they can validate that the readings 
are accurate. Since we are only into our second year of using the new 

additional gages, we do not have much of a history of readings.  
 
David Gochis and Erik Knight confirmed that they will coordinate on 

forecasting.  Mark Schumacher asked if David would have reports for the group 
for the April meeting and David said he would.  
 

Pete Dunda asked what the status was on the work being done on Spring 
Creek Reservoir.  He had heard that CPW’s crew had had to stop work on it. 



3 
 

 

Sonja and Don indicated that the work was finished, and they would be filling 
this year.   Pete also agreed with the recommendation to work to save water 

early by setting a temporary storage target above the minimum objective 
storage since it seems the TLUG group is always scrambling at the end of the 

water year.  
 
General Manager Sonja Chavez and Chair Don Sabrowski both agreed that 

they heard that the work on the outlet pipe has now been completed and that 
CPW hopes to fill the reservoir yet this winter.  Sonja noted that CPW’s water 
rights are junior to downstream users.  Sonja offered to contact Dan Brauch at 

the CPW to see if he could give a report at the April meeting. 
 

Mark Schumacher said he thought it was premature to be changing any 
releases at this time since it is only March and suggested we wait until the 
April meeting. He said he would like the TLUG representatives to all take a 

closer at the Stipulation Agreement so that they can be fully informed before 
making any changes at the April meeting. 

 
General Manager Sonja Chavez said she was not in favor of changing the 
“minimum storage objective” but she was in favor of trying to conserve water 

early in the season.   
 
Ryan Birdsey said he needs to really “dive into the Stipulation Agreement” but 

that he feels it does give this group the ability to set a higher year-end storage 
objective, as well as the ability to change it going forward as the group sees fit.  

Ryan said this is why the group is meeting now and that he would like to see 
the group be more conservative up front so that there is not so much 
scrambling at the end of the season to try to meet the minimum.  He said as a 

lifelong user of the canyon, he feels having more room to play with the releases 
at the end of the year will benefit a lot of users.   
 

Andy Spann said he doesn’t see the harm in setting the minimum storage 
objective at 73,000 acre-feet and trying to hit that target.  He said the group 

can look at it again based on the April forecasts.  He did note that in his 
observations soil moisture content is “horrible” and what he’s seen is not 
normal for this time of year.  Andy also noted that ever since he has been on 

TLUG, the forecasts have always shown higher runoff than what has actually 
occurred and has been off as much as 20 to 30 percent.  Andy said the group 

can certainly try to be more conservative this early and that it is early enough 
that there is time to shift some of the releases if necessary.  His goal is to have 
good water in July for crops and to use the earlier runoffs to fill the ditches.    

 
Sonja agreed that the period during peak runoff is the best time to conserve 
releases and she suggested that the group could perhaps meet more frequently 

during the runoff period to determine recommendations at that time.  Sonja 
said that if TLUG wants to set an early season storage planning number of 



4 

73,000 acre feet until the forecast stabilizes she is not opposed but if 
conditions require releases that take us below 73,000, she does not want 
members opposing releases as our minimum storage objective remains 70,000 
acre feet.   

Mark Schumacher noted that, in the past during higher water years, when the 
snowpack was 120 percent or higher, the group conserved water above the 
minimum storage objective based on actual conditions and then kept the 
winter releases at 100 cfs or more. 

Andy Spann asked Erik Knight if he can plug in a minimum year-end storage 
objective of 73,000 acre feet and see what that does to the projected releases. 
Andy also said that if this level allows, he would rather see releases cut back in 
April, May and the beginning of June during peak runoff to save some from 
July, August and September Erik said he can run those calculations.  

Erik Knight confirmed that the BOR can certainly set the plan not to make any 

changes to the current releases until the next meeting in early April.  

David Gochis noted in chat that their data shows that soil moisture is at 30-40 

percent of normal saturation for this time of year. 

After much discussion, Chair Don Sabrowski asked the group if there was 
consensus to keep the current flows at 73 cfs until the April meeting date. 
There were no objections. Don asked Erik Knight to keep the current flows and 
asked if he can send out the new operational forecasts based on an early 
season minimum year-end storage planning number of 73,000 acre-feet which 
could be reviewed at our April meeting.  Erik replied that he could do this.  

General Manager Sonja Chavez announced that the 20th Anniversary of the 
Gunnison River Festival will be June 9-11, 2022, with the festival commencing 
on the Taylor River on Friday June 9th. 

The next TLUG meeting was set for Thursday, April 7, 2022 at 2 PM. 

Chair Don Sabrowski asked if any of the citizens attending had comments or 
questions. Steve Cook said he would like to see the group set the year-end 

target a little higher to allow for more flexibility at the end of the year. 

Sonja Chavez noted that the District has received an email from Jason White of 
which she relayed to the group.   

Sonja said she would also email the full Stipulation Agreement to all of the 
TLUG members. 
Sonja asked if it was possible to figure out what the annual forecasting error 
has been from early March to June?  Erik said it is typical to see some fairly 



5 
 

 

big adjustments in April, May and early June as conditions can either take a 
big turn for the worse or the better once the actual runoff occurs. 

 
Sonja Chavez asked Erik Knight if he knew when the Four Parties meeting 

would be scheduled. Erik said it has typically been held the second or third 
week of May.  Sonja noted that this would give the group time to digest the May 
forecast and meet before the Four Parties meeting to relay their 

recommendations.  
 
John Bocchino (public) stated that he supports saving more water for the fall 

and winter flows. 
 

Chair Don Sabrowski asked if it was possible to factor in the low soil water 
content issues into the forecasts and would this change the predictions?  Erik 
noted that the current forecasts do include a soil moisture factor variable and 

that inflows have been adjusted down based on this.  
 

General Manager Sonja Chavez noted that Aerial Snow Observatory (ASO) snow 
flights are being conducted in the East and Taylor River and that this will 
hopefully improve forecasting.  She said that the Colorado Water Conservation 

Board has been approached with a grant requesting asking for funding support 
for more ASO flights across critical Colorado mountain basins and she’s hoping 
this could lead into an annual Colorado program. 

 
Chairman Don Sabrowski adjourned the March 7, 2022 TLUG meeting at 1:23 

pm.  



1 

220314 Summary WMP Committee_final 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: UGRWCD Board Members 

FROM: Watershed Management Planning Committee 

DATE: March 14, 2022 

SUBJECT: Watershed Management Planning Committee Meeting Summary 

A meeting of the committee was held on March 14, 2022 at 1:30 p.m. 

Stacy McPhail, Jesse Kruthaupt, Nancy Johnston, Erin Wilson, Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, Cheryl 
Cwelich and Sue Uerling were in attendance.  

Agenda topics included updates on the watershed/wildfire and geo-fluvial assessments, agricultural 
assessments, Gunnison Water Smart group, creel survey and boatable days tool report status, planned 
Whitewater Park improvements with the county, municipal needs assessment, and grant opportunities 
being pursued. 

As a result of these discussions the following action and discussion items were identified: 

Action and Discussion Items 

• Staff will meet with Jesse Kruthaupt and Nancy Johnston to discuss which Water Smart grants to
pursue for proposed projects.

• Sonja Chavez will review stakeholder outreach outline for WMP outreach meetings.
• Staff will develop potential dates for stakeholder outreach meetings in April.
• Staff will provide a link to a Google Drive where report sections will be provided.  Geological

sections from Bruce Bartleson will be included in this file.
• Sonja Chavez and Cheryl Cwelich will continue to work with CSU and the Colorado Natural

Heritage Program on contracting issues.  Sonja will be asking the board to revise their
procurement policy to reflect a maximum indirect cost rate of 18% that consultants such as
Universities can ask for as part of our agreements for services.

• Staff will discuss the frequency of the Upper Gunnison Water Smart group meetings.
• Sonja Chavez will work with Russ Forrest with the City of Gunnison to organize a meeting to

discuss land use change, growth potential, and available wet water resources.
• Staff will contact Katie Jagt with Watershed Science and Design to discuss development of more

refined  timeline for the project.
• Staff will contact Brad Piehl with JW Associates to discuss possibly removing climate resiliency

from his scope of work (unless it relates specifically to forest vegetation management).
• Climate resiliency as it relates to flora, fauna, wetlands, etc., will be addressed through CNHP

contract.
• Jesse Kruthaupt will continue working on identifying projects in the Cebolla watershed that were

originally identified in the WMP assessment process.

Exhibit D



2 
 

220314 Summary WMP Committee_final 

• Nancy Johnston will continue working with CPW to provide data from the creel survey on the 
Taylor River.  Once this is received a summary report will be provided.  The Boatable Days tool 
summary report will be complete by the end of March. 

• Staff will continue to compile report sections for the Phase 2 WMP report.  This will focus on 
sections provided by Wilson Water Group and suggestions for additional information will be 
provided to Erin Wilson. 

 
Next Meeting 
 
Watershed Management Planning Committee – April 11, 2022  – 1:30 p.m. 
 
Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:34 p.m. 



1 
220309 Summary FH Group meeting_final 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Forest and Watershed Health Technical Group 
 
FROM:  Beverly Richards, Water Resource Specialist 
 
DATE:  March 14, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Forest and Watershed Health Technical Group Meeting Summary 

 
A meeting of the committee was held on March 9, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Stacy McPhail, Julie Nania, Jesse Kruthaupt (TU), Sara Bergstrom, Nancy Johnston (CTU), Bella 
Biondini, Mike Tarantino (CSFS), Jamie Gomez (WRWC), Dan Olson (NRCS), Ashley Hom (USFS), 
Brad Phiel (JW Associates), Michael Blazewicz (Round River Design), Molly Guiney (Cedar 
Geomorphic), Abby McNamara (JW Associates), and UGRWCD staff Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, 
Sue Uerling and Cheryl Cwelich were in attendance.  
 
Agenda topics included updates on the watershed/wildfire and geo-fluvial assessments and next steps for 
the group.  As a result of these discussions, following is a summary of common themes/topics identified 
by the group related to topics of interest moving forward: 
 
Watershed/Wildfire Risk Assessment (JW Associates) 
 

• JW Associates is about a month behind schedule. 
• They have adjusted the FlamMap model inputs/behavior to accurately reflect the way fires have 

burned in recent years.  This included using landscape files to determine how vegetation burned.  
They used this information to include in the model for assessment in Upper Gunnison area, 
including flame length and crown fire activity.  This also included beetle mortality data which is 
not always available. 

• Changes were made to the fuel models based upon the insect mortality data received from this 
modification. 

• Brad provided maps of areas in the Upper Gunnison that showed increased flame lengths and 
crown fire activity due to insect mortality from the model. This did also show many areas that 
would fit in this category due to dry conditions throughout the basin. 

• Model data is only updated on a two-year plan so does not necessarily represent new insect 
outbreaks. 

• A map indicating the wildfire risk ranking for watersheds in the basin coincided with the 
modification to the model data, indicating high risk areas in the Tomichi Creek, Cochetopa Creek, 
Lake Fork, and Elk Mountains/Elk Creek basins. 

• The data used for this modification was the Rodman data for beetle activity and was done for the 
entire state.  The original model iteration did not measure what they needed 

• Work is still being done on the Zones of Concern portion of the assessment.  The final data will 
include wildfire hazard; debris flow; slope erosion, road hazards, and climate resiliency as it 
relates to vegetation.  The data and the draft report will be provided by April 15th. 

• The final report from JW Associates will also include suggestions for broad-scale approaches for 
mitigating fire hazards in these zones. 



2 
220309 Summary FH Group meeting_final 

• This information will also be shared with the Technical Committee of the Upper Gunnison Shared 
Stewardship Council. 

 
Geo-fluvial Assessment (Watershed Science and Design/Round River Design 
 

• Michael Blazewicz and Molly Guiney provided the update on the geo-fluvial assessment.  
• They are making good progress and are gearing up to begin field work on basins identified as part 

of the assessment.  The site visits will begin by the end of April and continue through June. 
• They have begun work in the Taylor River basin and their assessments include data from mining 

history, geo-hazards, avalanche paths, burn scars, and locations of municipal intakes. 
• The assessment includes locations on the Taylor River, Texas Creek, Illinois Creek, and Willow 

Creek. 
• Next steps will include designing the final reach study sheets and much of the information 

provided by JW Associates could be helpful. 
• Additional LIDAR data would be helpful with these assessments. 
• The end goal for this assessment will be to provide overall current conditions of the study areas 

and an understanding of the basin in general. 
• Ashley Hom said that as part of the Forest Service’s 10-year plan for Taylor Park, they are doing 

some of the same assessments.  A meeting with Michael and Ashley and their teams will be 
scheduled to tie the effort together including the historic extent of the wetlands. 

• Final report from this assessment will include information about wetlands, sedimentation, wildfire 
hazard, and restoration action plans. 

 
General Discussion 
 

• Jamie Gomez  with West Region Wildfire Council said the data collection associated with these 
assessments will help with river restoration and forest management. 

• There are several on the ground projects in process in the Taylor River basin including the 
environmental assessment and SBEADMR which includes active projects and work on private 
land. 

• It is important to work with partners on a watershed scale to focus on land management for 
CWPP.  This will guide decision making. 

• The West Region Wildfire Council is work with GMUG on funding to hire a coordinator for the 
Upper Gunnison Shared Stewardship Council.  The group suggested that Jamie may want to 
provide broad scale information on that group to the Upper Gunnison Board of Directors.   
 

Adjournment 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:15 a.m. 



1 
 

220302 Grant Committee Recommendation_final 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Beverly Richards/Grant Committee 

 
DATE: March 2, 2022 

 
SUBJECT: 2022 Grant Committee and Funding Recommendations 

 

The Grant Committee met via teleconference on March 2, 2022 to review 
applications for the 2022 Grant Program. Directors Andy Spann, Julie Nania, 
Joellen Fonken, Rebie Hazard, and Rosemary Carroll participated.  District staff 
Sonja Chavez, Beverly Richards, Jill Steele and Cheryl Cwelich were also in 
attendance.  Total funds requested in 2022 were $346,016, which was 
approximately $146,000 more than the 2022 District Grant budget amount of 
$200,000.   

 
The Grant Committee meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Joellen 
Fonken, Chair.  The Committee discussed each application and as part of the 
discussion, the funding recommendations are as follows: 

 
Grant Committee Funding Recommendations: 
 

1. City of Gunnison Potable Water Loss $25,000 
2. Coldharbour Institute Stream and Wetland Project $  7,500 
3. East River Number 1 Break Project $26,071 
4. Green Mesa Ranch Stream Channel Improvement $12,000* 
5. Hinsdale County Campground Water System Design  $  7,500* 
6. Hot Springs Reservoir Outlet Project $25,000* 
7. Investigating Remote Sensing Tools $14,580 
8. Lone Pine Ditch Improvement Project $15,000 
9. Marshall No 1 Optimization Project $34,000 
10. Native Plant Xeriscaping Project $  1,350 
11. Ohio Creek Diversion Modernization Project $28,500*  
12. Rec Path Bridge River Access Project $40,000  
13. Tomichi Diversion Modernization Project $47,500 
14. Wet Meadows & Riparian Restoration Project $22,000 
15. Wild-Rice Wetland Restoration Project $       0     

 
                    Total recommended for funding                 $306,001 
 
 



2 
 

220302 Grant Committee Recommendation_final 

 
* These grant applications include Engineering or WMP Implementation budget 
line item funds. 
 
There were a number of the applications that will be awarded funding contingent 
upon receipt of additional information.  In addition, there were several good 
project proposals submitted, but deemed in need of additional engineering or 
engineering review to ensure a successful outcome and avoid any potential 
negative downstream effects from the proposed work.   
 
In addition to approval of the award of $200,000 from 2022 District Grant Funds,  
the Grant Committee is recommending using: 

• $50,000 of 2022 District Engineering funds set aside by the Board during 
our budget process from unused District Grant funds from 2015-2020; 

• $22,101 of the final available balance from unused District Grant funds 
from 2015-2020; and 

• $33,900 from the 2022 Non-Operating Budget Line Item 47 for Basinwide 
Planning – WMP Implementation.   

 
This funding proposal leverages District resources with multiple outside 
matching resources while supporting quality project proposals consistent with 
our District mission and goals.    
 
Recommended Board Action in Support of the 2022 District Grant Process: 
 

1. Approve the Grant Committee’s 2022 recommendations for award of 
District Grant funds in the amount of $200,000 contingent upon staff 
receipt of identified additional information. 
 

2. Approve the transfer of the final $22,101 available from unused District 
grant funds (2015-2020). 

 
3. Approve the expenditure of $50,000 from the Engineering Fund Set-Aside 

available from unused District Grant funds (2015-2020).  
 

4. Approve the expenditure of $33,900 from the District Non-Operating 
Budget Line Item 47, Basinwide Planning – WMP Implementation. 
 

 
Additional Future Action Items for Staff Follow-Up: 
 

• Staff will follow up with applicants about additional information identified 
as necessary for funding approval. 

• Staff will consider input received from the Grant Committee on the grant 
application process for 2023 grant cycle.  These include: 

o Development of a “completed project” application template 



3 
 

220302 Grant Committee Recommendation_final 

o Possible development of an online fillable application. 
 
The Grant Committee meeting was adjourned at 5:09 p.m. 



 

1 

Wet Meadows Program Memo_03.28.22.CC_SC Clean 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM: Cheryl Cwelich, Watershed Program Coordinator 

DATE: March 18, 2022  

SUBJECT: Wet Meadows Program Update 

 

Background: The UGRWCD Wet Meadows Restoration and Resiliency Building Program 

(WMRRBP) submitted a grant concept paper to Greater Outdoors Colorado (GOCO) on 

February 17, 2022.  The concept paper was accepted by GOCO and the District will now move 

forward with a full Planning & Capacity grant request proposal of $158,100 (Project Narrative 

and Budget are attached as Exhibit A).  

 

As part of the grant submittal, the District committed $25,000 of the Watershed Program 

Coordinator’s salary over two years as matching funds. The grant will also commit $18,602.62 

of the existing NFWF Phase II grant as matching funds. This budget proposal has been reviewed 

and approved by the General Manager. 

 

A signed board resolution is required as part of the grant application submittal packet due March 

31, 2022 (Attached as Exhibit B).  The resolution has been reviewed by the UGRWCD General 

Counsel.   

 

Staff is seeking the following action from the Board: 

 

ACTION ITEM: UGRWCD signed 2022 GOCO grant application resolution.   

 



Exhibit A 
 

Wet Meadow Restoration Resilience Building Project (WMRRBP)  

2022 Planning & Capacity Grant Narrative 

The Wet Meadows Restoration & Resilience Building Project (WMRRBP) is the grassroots result 
of the Gunnison Climate Working Group in 2012 to reduce the negative impacts of climate 
change on the landscape, its wildlife, and people in Gunnison County and has impacted work in 
neighboring San Miguel, Mesa and Eagle Counties. This is the ten-year anniversary of the 
WMRRBP, a collaborative group of numerous partners, including local and national non-profits, 
state and federal government agencies, local ranchers and agricultural producers, volunteers, 
concerned citizens and more. The WMRRBP is managed by the Upper Gunnison River Water 
Conservancy District (UGRWCD), an agency with a long history of innovative conservation efforts 
and working collaboratively with a broad range of partners on public and private lands.    

Using recognized low-tech and process-based restoration techniques to address erosion, slow 
down and retain water, allow sediment to drop and vegetation growth to re-establish the 
hydrologic function in these systems, the WMRRBP is improving rangeland health, supporting 
land-based livelihoods, and restoring, maintaining, and enhancing habitat for the federally 
threatened Gunnison sage-grouse (GUSG), and other wildlife throughout the Gunnison Basin and 
beyond. This is a low-risk restoration strategy that uses multiple small-scale natural structures, 
built in phases, to restore and increase soil moisture holding capacity. In turn, this increases the 
resiliency of grouse habitat to drought, extreme weather, and climate variability, while providing 
valuable ecosystem services for the public and private landowners. Due to the sensitive brood-
rearing period, field work cannot occur until after July 15th, which allows barely three months to 
complete restoration work before snow flies. The short and long-term goals of this collaborative, 

landscape scale restoration project is to secure community vitality and agricultural sustainability 
against the effects of climate change by promoting healthy forested watersheds, sagebrush 
landscapes including mesic meadows, and improving GUSG populations.  

Capacity has become the most significant bottleneck preventing the WMRRBP from further 

demonstrating success at the landscape scale. In 2017, The Nature Conservancy developed a 
model to prioritize project areas for the WMRRBP. The model identified 32 HUC 12 watersheds, 
containing 541 stream reaches, and 764 acres of wetland habitat that can be restored along 271 
miles of stream in sagebrush systems in the Gunnison Basin. Within a season, project partners 
are able to tackle some high-visibility areas but are constrained by inner-agency transitions, 
planning, work crew and contractor capacity to address entire stream reaches. At the current 
pace, it will take more than 40 years to treat these reaches. With extreme drought becoming the 

new normal, this is too long for the Gunnison sage-grouse, other wildlife and a landscape 
increasingly impacted by aridification. WMRRBP partners are meeting in April to continue 
refining the TNC prioritization model and bring in other institutions, like the University of Denver 
(DU) and Western Colorado University (WCU), to assist with additional LiDAR mapping to 
pinpoint restoration sites, saving time for local agencies that are already at capacity. This effort, 
combined with funding for onsite planning & design consulting will help to get at least three 



Exhibit A 
 

additional drainages ready for implementation next year and propel our ability to address the 

landscape as a whole, rather than on a case-by-case basis.  

A major component of the WMRRBP is connecting people back to the land. Ecological 
consultants that plan, design, and train crews on restoration work are key to the success of the 
WMRRBP. They are also in high-demand and can be costly to procure. In addition, this 
restoration work would not be possible without conservation crews like Western Colorado 
Conservation Corp (WCCC) and Rocky Mountain Youth Conservation Corps (RMYCC), and 
volunteer groups like Wildlands Restoration Volunteers (WRV) and High County Conservation 
Advocates (HCCA). These conservation and volunteer work crews help to move and place 
materials in areas where it would be impossible or ecologically damaging to bring vehicles or 
equipment. Participants receive experiential education on erosion control structures from 
veteran ecological consultants. The WMRRBP program also hosts professional workshops, like 

one this upcoming August with Colorado Chapter of The Wildlife Society (CCTWS). This project 
serves as a model for other western communities on the benefits of working with a broad 
partnership in similar settings to address issues around water resources and climate change. This 
is training that people take with them to use in their own communities and professional work 
experiences across Colorado and even to other states like Wyoming and Utah to facilitate similar 
needed restoration work. While deeply impactful, these works crews and workshops can be 
costly, which is why the WMRRBP also engages with local middle and high school students for 
field trips, in addition to hosting workshops for college students at Western Colorado University. 
Academic institutions are powerful partners to perform restoration work and spread 
conservation knowledge, but due to timing of field work into the late summer and fall, they are 
not a regular work force that can be depended upon like the conservation and volunteer work 
crews or workshop attendees. Without GOCO’s help this year, a workshop event planned in 

September with over forty participants from HCCA and WRV will continue to go unfunded.  

The UGRWCD is requesting a Planning & Capacity grant for $158,100 dollars over a two-year 
period to increase needed planning, compliance, and work crew capacity for the WMRRBP. This 
grant will provide critical funding to support regulatory compliance to get projects off the 
ground, site planning and design needed to scale up the project and provide a seasonal crew and 
professional workshops to augment volunteer labor this season. As previous funding sources 
expire this year, GOCO's grant can serve as non-federal match to leverage multiple funding 
opportunities WMRRBP will be seeking for project implementation including NRCS Conservation 
Program Partners for Wildlife Programs, RESTORE Colorado, Bureau of Reclamation WaterSMART 
and others. This Planning & Capacity grant will solidify the ability to conduct necessary 
restoration work this season with nearly booked conservation crews. It will help the WMRRBP 

expand into new project areas next year with planning and site prioritization that create 
landscape-scale impacts, while also expanding knowledge and experience through training 
workshops and volunteer events that are used throughout the West.  This project will restore 
and maintain hydrologic function across our watershed for the benefit of its wildlife, people, and 
recreational economy while addressing water quality and quantity issues which effect the 
Gunnison Basin community, and all downstream water users in the west who are struggling with 
the effects of drought and climate change.  



Date Secured GOCO Funds Matching Funds

Pending $158,100.00

1-Dec $25,000.00

1-Mar $18,602.62

1-Dec $2,000.00

Pending $1,050.00

Pending $1,000.00

subtotal $158,100.00 $47,652.62

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS $205,752.62

Use of Funds (CASH) GOCO Funds Matching Funds Total Funding

Project Management/Coordination

Wet Meadow Coordination $25,000.00 $25,000.00

$0.00

Contractual Services $0.00

Site Planning & Design $87,500.00 $15,256.75 $102,756.75

Regulatory Compliance $20,800.00 $3,345.87 $24,145.87

Outreach & Education $0.00

Conservation Crews (such as WRV and 

RMYCC)
$49,800.00 $49,800.00

$0.00

subtotal $158,100.00 $43,602.62 $201,702.62

Use of Funds (IN-KIND) Matching Funds

Project Management & Legal

Upper Gunnison River Water 

Conservancy District 
$2,000.00

Partner Planning

BLM, CPW, USFS, USFWS, NRCS $1,050.00

Partner Workshops

CPW $1,000.00

subtotal $4,050.00

GOCO Funds Matching Funds

subtotal $158,100.00 $47,652.62

$205,752.62

CASH OR IN-KIND Total Funding
Partner Funding Agreements
BLM L17AC00255. $325,000.00
BLM L19AC00207. $53,000.00
USFS 18-PA-11020407-021. $64,787.00

Grant Funding
NFWF Phase II $288,561.85

$731,348.85

$937,101.47

77%
17%

GOCO % of project cost
GOCO % of project value

* The Total Use of Funds must equal the Total Source of Funds in the section above.

TOTAL USE OF FUNDS*

OTHER LEVERAGED RESOURCES (OPTIONAL)

TOTAL PROJECT VALUE

Description

Program coordination, financial tracking, education and 

outreach, reporting, and additional funding acquisition via future 

grant proposal development.

PROJECT BUDGET & DETAILS

Description

APPLICATION SCOPE OF WORK

Source of Funds (IN-KIND)

Source of Funds (CASH)

GOCO - Gunnison Wet Meadows Program Stewardship Impact Grant
Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District: Watershed Program Coordinator

Enhancing Sagebrush Resiliency by Restoring Mesic Habitat Hydrology (CO) (NFWF)

Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District: Consulting & Legal Counsel

BLM, CPW, USFS, USFWS, NRCS

CPW/CCTWS

Description

Provide project management; legal counsel; administrative @ ~$30/hr

Funding to assist federal partners with regulatory compliance, 

such as NEPA, SHPO, 404 permits, CWA, ESA, etc. 

Funding to support training of volunteer crews on restoration 

practices that can be used in other areas of Colorado. 

Exhibit A continued

Attend monthly planning meetings; participate in project strategic planning and site prioritization meetings @ ~7 meetings x 5 

participants @ ~$30/hr 

Host the CCTWS for a two-day workshop to provide project overview and hands-on training to wildlife professionals

subtotal

Funding for restoration work on BLM Gunnison properties. Grant period between 09/2018 and 09/2022.

Funding for restoration work in Gunnison, Mesa and San Miguel Counties. Grant period between 03/2020 and 12/2022

Funding for restoration work on BLM Silt property between 5/2019 and 9/2024. Funding will be spent in 2022.
Funding for restoration work on USFS property. Grant period between 5/2020 and 4/2023. 

Contractors to perform wetland delineations, expand site 

prioritization and design restoration treatments.

1



Exhibit B 

 

 

Resolution 2022 – 01 

 

Whereas, the mission of the Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District (District) is to be 

an active leader in all issues affecting the water resources of the Upper Gunnison River Basin; 

and, 

 

Whereas, the District supports and manages the Wet Meadows Restoration & Resilience 

Building Project; and, 

 

Whereas, the District supports the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for the Wet 

Meadows Restoration & Resilience Building Project Planning & Capacity Building project. And 

if the grant is awarded, the District supports the completion of the project; and,  

 

Whereas, the District has requested $158,100 from Great Outdoors Colorado for the Wet 

Meadows Restoration & Resilience Building Project Planning & Capacity Building project. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED THAT: 

 

The Board of Directors strongly support the application for a grant with Great Outdoors 

Colorado.  

 

If the grant is awarded, the Board of Directors strongly support the fulfillment of the project.  

 

If the grant is awarded, the Board of Directors hereby authorizes the General Manager to sign the 

grant agreement with Great Outdoors Colorado. 

 

If the grant is awarded, the Board of Directors authorizes the expenditure of funds necessary to 

meet the terms and obligations of the grant agreement. 

 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned President and Secretary have caused the seal of said 

District to be hereto affixed this 28th day of March, 2022. 

 

___________________________   ___________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary                 Michelle Pierce, President 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected and qualified Secretary of the Upper Gunnison 

River Water Conservancy District and the keeper of the records and seal of said District and that 

this is a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of 

Directors of said District held in accordance with the Bylaws of said District on the 28th day of 

March, 2022. 

 

__________________________ 

John Perusek, Secretary 

 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  UGRWCD Board of Directors  

FROM: Sue Uerling, Adm. Asst./Comm. Support Specialist 

DATE: March 18, 2022  

SUBJECT: Education and Outreach Update 

 

 

The following Education and Outreach action items are new since the last update at the February 28, 

2022 Board Meeting: 

 

• 90 Copies of the children’s book Drop: An Adventure through the Water Cycle by Emily Kate 

Moon were delivered to the Gunnison Elementary School first grade students on Monday, 

March 21, 2022.  Thanks so much for the Board and staff members who helped with the 

distribution. 

• The UGRWCD will partner with the City of Gunnison and Western Colorado University to 

help with the city-wide Community Clean-Up Day on Saturday, April 23, 2022.  Director 

Joellen Fonken and Watershed Program Coordinator Cheryl Cwelich will assign volunteers to 

clean up trash along the banks of the Gunnison River and Tomichi Creek at various locations 

throughout Gunnison.  Volunteers will then bring their filled trash bags back to Jorgensen Park 

and can join in a free lunch sponsored by the District.  The District will also use this 

opportunity to advertise the Gunnison River Festival and UGRWCD Conference Workshop.  

All Board members are welcome to participate in the community clean-up and/or join in the 

lunch.  Special thanks to Joellen and Cheryl for their efforts.  



AGENDA ITEM 9
Scientific Endeavors Update



AGENDA ITEM 9
Gunnison Basin Roundtable



AGENDA ITEM 9
Gunnison River Festival Update



AGENDA ITEM 10
Miscellaneous Matters



����������	
�����������������
���������������
�������� !�"�#$%!�&$�'()�*���+#,�$�-��./0�1����
�2�/34�������
�����
����������5����
�1���
��	
��6����78##9 &#:9�&�;#$ "�#$%!�&$�'()#'�����������<�����=����� �7>��?. �>>�?.�����@������<�����A����� �7>��?. �>>�?.������������<����������� A7�>�?. ��.������������<�����@����� ��. ��.�����>������<����������� ��. ��.�6����������4
��B �>>�?.�C����
1��6
����4
��B D���?.�E�����
�0���B �7D>�6.�F�	���G��C�
�1���
�B �=7��6.�E
1��H:$I���JKKL#��	
�������G
���B�D�=7��M�E
1������
		���������N1�������
	B�O�P$##L



3 <---- Month to Summarize (change this number to look at a different month)
PRELIMINARY - SUBJECT TO REVISION

Daily Summary for Month --> Mar

1st Fill  2nd Fill  Other Aspinall BP Accnt AU Accnt 1st Fill Contract Tot 1st fill

Day of 
Month

Silver 
Jack 

Reservoi
r & 

Juniors 
In 

Priority 
(1=Yes, 
0=No)

TP 
Releases 
from TP 
1st Fill 

(1=Yes, 
0=No)

Excess 
Released 
TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat Inflow 
(cfs)

Gun 
Tunnel 
(GT) 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day 
Average 
Excess 

TP Inflow 
and AU 

Nat Inflow 
(cfs)

3-Day Ave. 
GT 

Shortage 
after AU 

Nat Inflow 
and TP 
Inflow    
(cfs)

TP Res. 
Content 

(af)

TP - 
USGS 
outflow 

(cfs)

TP 
Compute
d Inflow 

(cfs)

1st Fill - 
Storage -

in TP 
(af)

2nd Fill -
Storage 
- in TP 

(af)

Other 
Account 
Storage 
in TP - 
Storage 

- (af)

AU 
Storag
e in TP 
- (af)

SJ Res 
Content 

(af)

SJ Inflow to 
Reservoir 
Storage 

(cfs)

BP - 
Storage - 
in SJ (af)

AU 
Water - 

Storage - 
in SJ (af)

BM Res 
Content 

(af)

MP Res 
Content 

(af)

CR Res 
Content 

(af)

AU 
Change 

In 
Storage 

(af)

Computed 
rel from 
CR (cfs)

AU inflow 
below TP 

& with 
AU Aug 
Rel (cfs) #REF!

UGRWCD 
Contract 

water     
(af)

Gun. 
River 
below 
East 

Portal    
(cfs)

Total 
Gunnison 

Tunnel 
Divs (cfs)

GT Divs - 
AU inflow 
minus TP 
released 

inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
TP 

Released 
Inflow 
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
SJ 

Storage 
Inflow by 
AU Exch 

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
UGRWC

D 
Contract 
Water 

Rel    
(cfs)

GT Divs - 
Rel from 
2nd Fill 

for 
Rec/Fish  

(cfs)

GT Divs - 
1st Fill 

Credit in 
BM     
(cfs) #REF!

Remain. 
1st Fill 

Credits in 
TP and 

AU      
(af)

(1) (2) (3) (5) (6) (7) (8) (11) (14) (15) (19) (25) (30) (34) (36) (39) (43) (47) (49) (77) (100) (124) (125) (127) #REF! #REF! (128) (131) (132) (133) (134) (135) (136) (137) #REF! (140)

1 1 1 288 0 345 0 57,735 74 67 40,900 16,835 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,608 105,164 15,169 -19 352 269   305 47 47 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
2 1 1 303 0 305 0 57,707 74 60 40,753 16,954 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,030 105,194 15,737 21 356 293   306 50 50 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
3 1 1 322 0 304 0 57,679 74 60 40,606 17,073 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 241,934 104,802 16,281 56 308 262   308 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
4 1 1 319 0 315 0 57,665 75 68 40,458 17,208 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 241,838 104,878 16,336 34 309 252   309 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
5 1 1 152 0 264 0 57,707 75 96 40,309 17,398 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 241,838 104,501 16,362 -351 308 56   308 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
6 1 1 946 0 472 0 57,707 74 74 40,162 17,545 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,271 105,399 16,296 1,265 308 872   308 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
7 1 1 439 0 512 0 57,679 74 60 40,016 17,663 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,030 105,945 16,278 288 308 379   308 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
8 1 1 472 0 619 0 57,665 73 66 39,870 17,795 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,800 105,497 16,250 294 331 406   331 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
9 1 1 377 0 429 0 57,679 74 81 39,724 17,956 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,656 105,619 16,299 26 357 296   357 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
10 1 1 426 0 425 0 57,637 75 54 39,575 18,062 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,752 105,710 16,290 179 357 372   357 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
11 1 1 336 0 380 0 57,582 75 47 39,426 18,155 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 241,934 106,562 16,270 14 357 289   357 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
12 1 1 457 0 406 0 57,596 74 81 39,280 18,316 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 241,549 107,051 16,351 185 357 377   357 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
13 1 1 413 0 402 0 57,568 74 59 39,134 18,434 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 240,924 107,703 16,461 137 358 354   358 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
14 1 1 597 0 489 0 57,554 74 67 38,987 18,566 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 240,250 108,770 16,557 489 358 530   358 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
15 1 1 10 0 340 0 57,526 74 60 38,939 18,587 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 235,013 109,430 16,330 -4,803 465 0   415 50 0 50 0 0 0 0  105,924
16 1 1 2,701 0 1,103 0 57,512 74 67 38,793 18,719 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 238,913 110,117 16,293 4,549 460 2,679   415 45 45 0 0 0 0 0  105,924
17 1 1 0   0  
18 1 1 0   0  
19 1 1 0   0  
20 1 1 0   0  
21 1 1 0   0  
22 1 1 0   0  
23 1 1 0   0  
24 1 1 0   0  
25 1 1 0   0  
26 1 1 0   0  
27 1 1 0   0  
28 1 1 0   0  
29 1 1 0   0  
30 1 1 0   0  
31 1 1 0   0  

Total 31 31 8,560 0 7,112 0 1,186 1,066 0 2,363 5,650 7,686 5,457 193 143 50 0 0 0 0 0
Tot (af) 16,978 0 14,106 0 2,352 2,115 0 4,686 11,206 15,244 10,824 382 283 99 0 0 0 0 0
Min 1 1 10 0 264 0 57,512 0 47 38,793 16,835 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 235,013 104,501 15,169 -4,803 308 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,924
Max 1 1 2,701 0 1,103 0 57,735 75 96 40,900 18,719 0 0 1,135 0 1,135 0 242,800 110,117 16,557 4,549 465 2,679 0 0 415 50 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 105,924

Annual Summary (all values in ac-ft)  Note: Reservoir content is the end of the month content 
(days) (days) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af) (af)

Nov 30 30 33,397 0 31,516 0 58,737 4,470 4,632 54,117 4,620 0 0 1,713 300 1,713 0 220,759 110,430 15,977 11,721 20,025 29,369  19,420 604 604 0 0 0 0  105,924
Dec 31 31 25,577 0 25,158 0 58,695 4,564 4,521 49,554 9,141 0 0 1,790 166 1,790 0 232,145 105,687 16,102 6,769 20,080 22,285  18,851 1,229 1,229 0 0 0 0  105,924
Jan 31 31 22,806 0 23,602 0 58,327 4,412 4,043 45,142 13,184 0 0 1,906 116 1,906 0 237,819 104,652 16,186 4,722 19,520 19,830  18,453 1,067 1,067 0 0 0 0  105,924
Feb 28 28 20,714 0 20,519 0 57,749 4,096 3,518 41,046 16,703 0 0 1,906 0 1,906 0 242,463 105,444 15,052 4,304 17,228 17,436  16,989 239 239 0 0 0 0  105,924
Mar 31 31 16,978 0 14,106 0 2,352 2,115 0 2,363 11,206 15,244  10,824 382 283 99 0 0 0  
Apr 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
May 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Jun 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Jul 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Aug 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Sep 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Oct 31 31 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  0 0 0 0 0 0 0  
Total 365 365 119,472 0 114,901 0 19,893 18,830 582 29,877 88,058 104,164 84,537 3,522 3,423 99 0 0 0 0
Min 28 28 0 0 0 0 57,749 0 0 41,046 9,141 0 0 1,790 0 1,790 0 232,145 104,652 15,052 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 105,924
Max 31 31 25,577 0 25,158 0 58,695 4,564 4,521 49,554 16,703 0 0 1,906 166 1,906 0 242,463 105,687 16,186 6,769 20,080 22,285 0 18,851 1,229 1,229 99 0 0 0 0 105,924

Type of Water Diverted into Tunnel

TO

Taylor Park Reservoir Aspinall Unit GUNNISON TUNNEL ALLOCATION
River Call Average Flow Reservoir

Silver Jack Reservoir
Reservoir Reservoir Contents Total Aspinall Unit Inflow Streamflow and Divs

















































































































AGENDA ITEM 11
Citizens Comments



AGENDA ITEM 12
Future Meetings



FUTURE MEETINGS/EVENTS

 Legislative Committee Meeting - April 1; 8 AM (tentative)
 Taylor Local User's Group Meeting - April 7, 2 PM
 Legislative Committee Meeting - April 8; 8 AM (tentative)
 Watershed Mgt. Planning Committee Meeting - April 11; 1:30 PM
 Legislative Committee Meeting - April 15; 8 AM (tentative)
 EARTH DAY - April 22
 Gunnison Community and River Clean-Up Day - April 23
 UGRWCD Post Clean-Up Lunch at Jorgensen Park - April 23
 UGRWCD Board Meeting – April 25; 5:30 PM

 Watershed Mgt. Planning Committee Meeting - May 9; 1:30 PM
 UGRWCD Board Meeting - May 24th in LAKE CITY



AGENDA ITEM 13
Summary of Action Items



AGENDA ITEM 14
Adjournment


	Agenda - March 28, 2021
	Agenda Item 3 - Consent Agenda Items
	Approval of February 28, 2022 Minutes
	Monthly Budget Summary
	Consideration of Expenses

	Agenda Item 4 - Legal and Legislative Matters
	EXECUTIVE SESSION - Discuss a consultant maximum indirect cost recovery rate
	Legislative Activity Report
	Memorandum Regarding Lake Powell and Glen Canyon Dam

	Agenda Item 5 - Introduction of Steve Pope, General Manager of the Uncompahgre Valley Water Users Association
	Agenda Item 6 - Presentation by Jeff Derry, Dust on Snow Update
	Agenda Item 7 - BREAK
	Agenda Item 8 - Basin Water Supply Report
	Agenda Item 9 - General Manager, Committee and Staff Updates
	Treasurer's Report
	General Manager's Update
	Executive Commitee Meeting Update
	Taylor Local User's Group Update
	March 7, 2022 Meeting Summary

	Watershed Management Planning Committee Update
	March 14, 2022 Meeting Summary

	Grant Committee Update
	Action on Grant Committee Recommendations from March 2, 2022 Meeting recommended by Grant Committee

	Wet Meadows Program Update
	Adoption of Financial Policy for Indirect Costs

	Education and Outreach Update
	Scientific Endeavors
	Gunnison Basin Roundtable
	Gunnison River Festival Update

	Agenda Item 10 - Miscellaneous Matters
	Gunnison Energy Production Report - Solar Panels
	Current Gunnison River Spreadsheet
	Newspaper Articles and Other Water News

	Agenda Item 11 - Citizens Comments
	Agenda Item 12 - Future Meetings
	Agenda Item 13 - Summary of Meeting Action Items
	Agenda Item 14 - Adjournment
	ADPC2B6.tmp
	Upper Gunnison River Water Conservancy District




